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Financial Highlights

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Financial Condition Data
Assets

Securities

Loans

Deposits

Borrowed funds
Shareholders’ equity

Income Statement Data
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Net income

Per Common Share Data
Earnings - diluted

Cash dividends

Stock price

Book value

Ratios

Return on average assets

Return on average equity

Interest rate spread
Loans-to-deposits

Nonperforming loans to total loans

Diluted Earnings

Loans per Share
(in millions)
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2002 2001 2000
$858,035 $863,836 $889,169
317,276 338,456 423,316
484,068 457,008 402,101
524,067 529,691 522,485
221,575 229,575 268,598
100,541 96,940 92,648
$22,6135 $22,932 $22,753
937 1,075 630
4,351 3,518 3,829
17,174 19,069 17,355
6,744 5,166 6,652
$1.32 $1.00 $1.24
0.72 0.72 0.72
23.70 16.75 13.44
19.54 17.92 16.48
0.78% 0.59% 0.76%
6.73 5.27 7.79
2.39 2.33 2.47
92.37 86.28 76.96
0.30 0.33 0.30
Cumulative Share
Book Value Repurchases
$1954 (in millions) 38
. AN 36
$16.48 S X M
$1551 /\(
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In prior messages, we have discussed our goal of
transforming our primary subsidiary, Great American
Federal, from a traditional thrift to a full service
community bank. We have also discussed the
significant investments we have made over the past
several years in human capital, technology, products,
processes, and procedures.

We are particularly proud of the senior management
team we have assembled that brings a wealth of
commercial banking experience to our organization,
and our dedicated staff that has responded remarkably
to this rebuilding of infrastructure and culture. All our
efforts have been focused on positioning your Company
for longer-term profitability and success, leading to
the ultimate goal of enhancing shareholder value.

In last year's report, we stated: "We believe the
Company is now in position to see these investments
begin to bear fruit as we move into 2002.” We are
happy to report that 2002 produced record earnings
per share for GA Financial. In a year in which interest
rates declined to their lowest levels in more than 40
years, financial institutions, including Great American
Federal, saw significant amounts of loan prepayments
and refinancings, and where many banks and thrifts
experienced interest rate spreads and net interest
margins narrowing, we continued to reposition our
balance sheet to enhance future earnings growth, and
actually increased our spread and margin.

For the fourth year in a row, we increased our book
value per share. Of equal, or even greater, importance,
in a year in which all the major stock market indices
were down for a third straight year, our stock price
appreciated more than 40% over the prior year-

end price.

For the year, diluted earnings per share were

$1.32 on net income of $6.7 million, compared to
diluted earnings per share of $1.00 and net income
of $5.2 million for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2001. Book value per share increased
from $17.92 to $19.54 and, as a result of announcing
and completing our tenth stock repurchase program
last year, we reduced shares outstanding from

5.41 million shares to 5.15 million shares. We also
increased net loans, and our loans-to-deposits ratio
increased from 86.28% to 92.37%. At the same time,
we maintained our excellent level of asset quality,
with nonperforming loans to total loans at a low
0.30%. In addition, we realized a significant reduction
in our operating expenses, down by $1.9 million or
10%, from $19.1 million in 2001 to $17.2 million in
2002.
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As a result of this performance, your Board of
Directors approved and declared a $0.20 per share
dividend which was paid in February 2003,
represents an 11% increase over the prior quarter
dividend, and also provides a yield in excess of 3%.
This dividend increase is not only reflective of the
Company's strong earnings performance in 2002,
but is also consistent with our mission to return
value to our shareholders.

Hitrine Our GoaLs

We set specific goals for 2002 focused on improving
the Company's profitability, operating efficiencies
and overhead costs, while continuing to grow our
core banking activities.

As previously stated, we substantially reduced our
operating and overhead expenses. This was
accomplished following detailed analysis of our
staffing needs, more effectively utilizing our
outside vendors and consultants, analyzing the
profitability and growth potential of our retail
community office network, and generally “tightening
the belt” in a variety of ways. We also made some
difficult decisions during 2002 as we closed two
community offices. Special thanks to Jim Dionise,
our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, who completed his first full year with the
Company in 2002, and his staff for their efforts and
insights in helping us achieve this result.

The implementation of our new Kirchman
technology platform was successfully completed
in the first quarter of 2003. This conversion
represented a significant undertaking by our
Company and involved all areas of operation. This
new technology will benefit not only our customers,
but also our employees as they strive to provide
the best customer service possible, giving us greater
flexibility in offering new products to our business
and retail customers. Special thanks to Vice
Presidents Judy Stoeckle and Wayne Callen and
their entire staff in leading this effort.

Our focus on commercial and small business
lending bore fruit in 2002, as we increased our
commercial real estate loan portfolio by more than
50%, growing loan balances in this category from
approximately $64 million to more than $100 million.
Likewise, our commercial business loans increased
approximately 70%, from $18 million to almost
$31 million. We continue to focus on our niche
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lending strategy for commercial real estate
and business lending in the $500,000 to

$5 million range, which exceeds the
capability and capacity of most of our
smaller community bank competitors. We
continue to position ourselves with our
customers and the market as being large
enough to handle this size relationship, yet
small enough to give our customers the
personal service and attention that they seek.

On an overall net basis, total loans grew from
$457 million to $484 million. This increase
occurred in spite of a significant reduction
in our residential loan portfolio, which
decreased from $259 million to $219 million,
largely as a result of payoffs in our purchased
loan portfolio. Special thanks to Vicki Hays,
our Vice President and Chief Lending
Officer, and her entire lending staff for
producing such outstanding performance.

GA Financial Strategies, our weaith
management subsidiary, completed its first
full year of operation in a very difficult market
environment. Despite the economic recession
and the corporate scandals and excesses
which shook the confidence of investors, we
were able to acquire more than 100 new
account relationships, and are establishing
credibility in the emerging wealth niche
market which we have targeted, seeking out
clients with investable assets of $25,000 to
$1 million. We look for this subsidiary to
continue to establish significant relationships
and build a base of recurring noninterest
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income, as we continue to provide
meaningful products and services to our
clients. Special thanks to GA Financial
Strategies President Rick Wiethorn for
helping to build a solid foundation from
which we look forward to continuing growth.

We have emphasized the importance of
acquiring expertise in commercial and retail
banking. This past year we made another
important addition to our team in hiring
Vice President Wayne Freed to lead our
Community Banking division. Wayne brings
26 years of experience in sales, marketing
and financial management, most recently as
vice president and relationship manager at
another community bank in our region.
Wayne, along with several other members
of the senior management team, is a key
contributor in a customer service initiative
to develop and enhance a high-
performance customer service culture
throughout our organization.

Through all of this change, we have been
challenged to recruit and hire individuals with
new skill sets and to work with our existing
staff, utilizing their strengths while providing
opportunities to develop new skills. Our
change to a sales-focused, performance-
based organization was a cultural challenge
for us. Special thanks to Betty Berkely, Vice
President of Human Resources and
Marketing, and her staff for developing the
infrastructure to support this transformation.




Looxing Forwarp

We look forward with excitement to 2003 as the
beginning of a new chapter in the evolution of our
Company. Having substantially completed our
changes to the infrastructure and culture of our
organization, we are now looking to grow the
franchise and leverage our equity. While we are
confident that we can continue to grow earnings
through further improvements to our existing
business model, we recognize that sustainable
long-term earnings growth must be based on a
plan which creates quality franchise growth. This
growth can and will result from one or more of the
following strategies which we have adopted in our
2003 Strategic Plan.

1) Deposit products: Just as we have developed
and fine-tuned a first class credit operation, we
will take the same approach to develop a new
deposit strategy which will have the primary
focus of generating new transactional products
and deposits. Deposit growth will fuel asset
growth, and transaction accounts will provide a
low cost source of funds. Having developed the
commercial relationships on the lending side,
and having a strong base of retail customers, we
are looking to create and market relationship
accounts to attract these deposits. To this end, we
have hired a Deposit Products and Operations
Manager to spearhead this strategy.

2) Community development: We have always taken
seriously our role as a responsible corporate
citizen in the communities we serve, as well as
our obligations and responsibilities under the
Community Reinvestment Act (CRA). This year,
we are developing a community business
development officer concept, which, in addition
to CRA, will focus on the financial needs of our
many local governmental, civic and non-profit
agencies and organizations. We look to develop
mutually beneficial long-term relationships with
them and their various constituents. This focus
will supplement our deposit strategy as we
develop products that will meet their needs and
allow us to grow new transactional deposit
accounts.

3) Franchise growth: With the changes to our
infrastructure and technology successfully behind
us, we are now in a position to look for different
ways to accomplish franchise growth and
leverage our equity. Ways to expand the
franchise include de novo branching, opening
specialty/limited purpose offices for lending and
wealth management, or completing single or
multiple branch acquisitions. A more significant
means would be the acquisition of a local
community bank or thrift, or a non-traditional
line of business to complement our core
banking activities.

We are proud of the results that we have posted
this year and attribute that performance to the
long-term strategies which we have adopted and
implemented. Our continuing goal is to not only
grow this franchise, but also the value of it, to
achieve the ultimate goal of enhancing shareholder
value. The successful execution of last year's plans
and goals certainly accomplished that objective.

We are excited. We have done a lot of good things,
and our long-term strategies are bearing fruit. We
have been good stewards of stockholder equity.
We will deploy it effectively, but not recklessly in
the pursuit of our goals. We have the momentum,
and we want it to continue.

We thank our Directors for their support, dedication
and guidance as we have made these significant
improvements. We also thank our customer focused
employees for their excellent performance. On
behalf of all of us here at GA Financial, we thank
you, our shareholders, for your continued support
and confidence. We look forward to 2003 with even
greater expectations of creating shareholder value
as our employees continue to show our customers
the way to financial growth and security.
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(OUR LENDING DIVISION WAS DRAMATICALLY REORGANIZED, INTRCDUCED NEW
PRODUCTS, ADDED SMALL BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE EXPERTISE,
DEVELOPED A NEW REVENUE-PRODUCING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY, IMPROVED CUSTOMER SERVICE, AND EXCEEDED ITS GOALS IN
VIRTUALLY ALL ASPECTS.

Commercial Real Estate Excerping Our GoaLs
Loans
{in millions)
5}'3;4 Lending goals were surpassed by continuing

to build our commercial lending portfolio, by
successfully executing home equity loan
promotions and by offering new products for
residential customers.

$63.8

Our performance benefited from having three
highly experienced new commercial lenders
on board for the full year. We created a
separate business lending unit staffed by
two of these loan officers. The third lender
joined the commercial real estate team. This
reorganization demonstrates our commitment
to achieving greater market share in business

o lending while continuing to grow our
commercial real estate lending.

98 99 00 01 02

December 31,
ecember Propuct DeveLopMENT Pavs Orr

New product development and loan
promotions generated new revenue and
new customers.

We introduced a broader array of residential
adjustable rate mortgages and developed
first and second mortgage “combination
loans,” not widely available in our market,
which enable qualified customers to
purchase a home with less cash outlay.

Our marketing decision to create a “rate
blitz" in our fall home equity promotion
showed a big payoff. We offered one low
rate, no matter what the term of the loan.
For qualified borrowers, we also loaned up
to 100 percent of the appraised value of
their home.

The results were impressive: We achieved a
record number of loan approvals for this
promotion, with many applications coming
from new customers.

7 InfegraCare |
— 2
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$55 MILLION OF NEW LOANS IN 2002.

BuiLping New BusinEss
RELATIONSHIPS

Adding experienced lenders and creating
separate units for greater accountability has
resulted in a formal organization that produced
immediate improvements in our lending
performance.

Our teams developed lending relationships with
more than 100 new business and commercial
real estate customers which added $55 million
of new loans in 2002. Additionally, Great
American Federal has the opportunity to
demonstrate to these new customers the value
of our other products and services.

On the mortgage and consumer lending

side, we have added carefully selected loan
correspondents to increase our number of
originations. This strategy enables us to develop
new business and increase our name awareness
outside of our community office footprint,
especially in the growing North Hills market.
The result: We greatly exceeded our
production goals for residential loans in 2002.

MaintaiNning LEnNDING INTEGRITY

During the year, we created a cohesive Credit
Administration unit within the Lending Division
in order to ensure integrity and quality in all
supporting functions.

Within this unit, loan servicing was completely
re-organized, management of our commerecial
portfolio was improved, and the recovery
function was transferred to this unit.

We completed development of new accounting
compliance standards, which are critically
important for maintaining the quality of our
loan portfolic. And, we added a highly
experienced loan review manager to our staff.
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OUR TEAMS DEVELOPED LENDING RELATIONSHIPS WITH MORE THAN 100
NEW BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE CUSTOMERS WHICH ADDED

_ win-win scenario that would add benefit
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GENERAT][NG R]ETURNS AND
CommunITY GOODWILL Y12y 2002, high wind<l
We are expanding our network and business
opportunities by improving our community
development strategy. We made a strategic
decision to achieve an “Outstanding” rating as
defined by the Community Reinvestment Act.

Under the leadership of Vicki Hays, Chief
Lending Officer, a committee of senior
managers evaluated the potential for a

to our local communities and produce
return on investment.

gppiied for the
approved
~ched from the benl, e

Following Board of Director approval of
the committee’s recommended strategy,
a new Community Development Manager
was recruited and hired.

The Community Development area is now
production oriented and developing a suite

@f me Wﬁfﬁb j

Pf products to offer our cu'stom'ers that will Ol homp Mt
improve the communities in which many of ‘ &%ﬁbﬁaﬁ;@li“f 1, W
our customers reside. . i, Cormemunts

AN Exciting FuTurzs

We are excited about our future
and prepared for continued success.
We are confident that we have
motivated and capable employees
who share our stockholders’ desire
for continued growth. The past
year's performance has clearly
demonstrated our ability to work
the plans we developed in

previous years and show N
customers the way to achieve ~
their financial objectives.




CONTRIBUTING TO THE
BorroMm LiNE

Maximizing efficiencies and contributing to
the bottom line were the first priorities of
Wayne Freed when he joined Great American
Federal in April as Vice President, Community
Banking. He and the other employees in
the division believed they could accomplish
significant results, and they did.

Loan growth goals were exceeded in 10 of
our 12 community offices. Our Customer
Call Center also contributed to this
performance, closing a total of $4.7 million
in new loans. The center also met or
exceeded goals for installment loans,
overdraft protection and new debit cards.

Consumer Loans
{in millions}

$79.1

AaARANa
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The closure of the North Versailles Wal-Mart
office and the sale of the Norwin office
increased our efficiencies with minimal
negative impact to customers.

In preparation for the Kirchman
conversion, division employees spent
many hours in training and practice
sessions to be ready to service
customers on the first day of business.
Their familiarity with and confidence in
the system is fundamental to
improving efficiencies and delivering
higher levels of customer service.

GAFINANCIAL,

NEwW ScorRECARD PROGRAM TO
Ennancek SaLes CULTURE

A comprehensive community office
scorecard program will be launched and
become the foundation for building an even
stronger sales culture in the division. With
solid training and constant encouragement,
our employees more readily see their role as
advisors and consultants to our customers.

The new scorecard system comprises five
measurement categories, with a number of
items to be tracked within each category.
Each community office will monitor:

* Deposit Production

¢ Loan Production

¢ Fee Income

e Expense Control

» Service and Sales Quality

The new scorecard system creates a more
powerful management tool for our retail
operations. Additionally, each community
office manager has specific calling goals for
developing new business and for improving
each office’s cross-solutions ratio.

SoLuTioNs BurLp CONFIDENCE

The comerstone of our new sales culture is
finding financial solutions for our customers.
Customers who come into our community
offices are not just account numbers; they
are people looking to solve financial
challenges or capitalize on financial
opportunities. Our culture fosters the
relationship building that leads to trust.

Trust leads to quality discussions about
other ways we can help. Others call that
‘cross-selling.” We prefer to call it “cross-
solutions.” We're not here to “sell”
someone something. We're here to offer
trusted advice that leads to satisfactory
solutions for our customers.

In other words, we’re here to show
customers the way to financial solutions.

INcC. lg" ANNUAL REPORT 2002




OUR WEALTH MANAGEMENT SUBSIDIARY SHOWS CLIENTS TANGIBLE BENEFITS
IN PROVIDING NON-BIASED ADVICE AND COUNSEL FROM PEOPLE WHO ALSO

KNOW BANKING.

Suowing THE WaAY IN A
DirricuLt ENVIRONMENT

GA Financial Strategies, in its first full year
of operation, proved it can show clients the
way to profitable investing, even in a market
filled with turmoil and uncertainty. Our wealth
management subsidiary shows clients
tangible benefits in providing non-biased
advice and counsel from people who also
know banking.

Under the guidance of GA Financial
Strategies President Rick Wiethorn, we
were able to show customers different
avenues for safeguarding their assets while
still achieving acceptable growth. While
some investors still sought aggressive
strategies, many preferred conservative or
more balanced approaches that would
protect principal.

As a result, we have a new source of fee
income, have strengthened relationships
with existing customers, and have
developed new customer relationships.

Regardless of the business and stock market
climate, there is ample opportunity to produce

fee income from profitably serving clients
with $25,000 to $1 million that they wish to
invest to achieve specific objectives.

We initiate our relationship with clients
through careful listening. We nurture that
relationship by assisting them in evaluating
their goals. We help them determine
immediate needs for cash flow, the amount
for an emergency reserve, and their desire
for long-term asset growth and preservation.

Our knowledge and experience with wealth
management services, coupled with our
access to safe FDIC-insured bank products,
gives clients a greater array of options.
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Buriping New Busingss

Our expertise in wealth management preeessing-plants nati j
produces many benefits. It grows shareholder ' rc@ill. As the son of a spekEity
value by strengthening our position in the steelvorker;#-know that hirigol
marketplace and by adding new revenues. M&eepmg skilled employgesh
It enables our community offices to refer cr r success. We gomsider

more financial services to retail customers.
it also broadens the relationships we can
develop with business customers. The market
niche we are serving with GA Financial
Strategies is very similar to the niche we
serve with business lending, which produces
excellent synergy.

eratni@-s.
As part of the enhanced sales culture being T
fostered throughout Great American Federal,
we have implemented new training programs
to assist community office employees in
introducing our wealth management
services to qualified customers. We have also
implemented incentives for employees who
arrange for a qualified prospect to meet
with a wealth management representative.

E. Seloara, PE.
TS Thaniurn/ TechSpee ing.

In this first full year of operation, we concen-
trated on introducing wealth management
services 1o referrals originating from within
the bank. Indeed, nearly all of the more than
100 new accounts were referrals from
existing relationships. We will capitalize on
the high credibility established thus far and
widen our marketing activity to reach clients
not already in a banking relationship,
thereby creating a new entry point for
introducing clients to other bank services.

in summary, this first year's performance
demonstrated the way in which GA
Financial Strategies completes the
circle of financial services we offer
to our customers and adds an
important building block for
growing your campany.
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EXCELLENCE 1S THE RESULT OF CARING MORE THAN OTHERS THINK IS WISE;
DREAMING MORE THAN OTHERS THINK IS PRACTICAL;
AND EXPECTING MORE THAN CTHERS THINK IS POSSIBLE.

The record achievements presented in this
report were accomplished because of the
commitment, performance and productivity
of our employees. It's employee service that
elevates financial services from a commodity
to a personal, tailored, strategic solution for
individuals and businesses. Great American
Federal employees demonstrate their spirit
of excellence every day, not only as they
serve customers, but as they serve their
communities.

Our organization encourages and equips
employees for excellence in many ways.
Investment in training is a continuing priority.
Last year, we sponsored 74 in-house training
programs, or more than 3,100 hours of
training. More importantly, we continue to
enhance our total compensation package to
attract and retain the key talent to identify
he best financial solutions for our customers.

Customers like to be served by people who
know them. With our employees’ average
tenure of nearly ten years, customers are
assured of personal, knowledgeable service.
Even our part-time employees average nearly
four years of service. Commitment such as
this is what fosters excellence in customer
relationships. Ruth Hodges, Patricia Jenkins
and Mary Walos, for example, celebrated

25 years of service last year.

Twenty-six employees volunteered time and

talent to serve on one of three Customer Service
Committees, a major initiative Great American
Federal launched in 2002 to sharpen customer
focus. Each committee has a separate assignment:
One to define customer service standards, another
to determine measurements for the standards, and
a third to develop reward and recognition
programs for outstanding internal and external
customer service.

Commitment and dependability are
measured in other ways, as well. We have
employees, for example, who value perfect
attendance. And we honor them every year
at our annual Employee Recognition Dinner.
Exceptionally impressive is the record of
Susan Morris, Patricia Schultz and Rose Ann
Torok who have not missed a day in seven
consecutive years.

This spirit overflows into our communities,
too. Many important organizations benefit
from Great American Federal employees
serving in the spirit of excellence,
organizations such as The Center for Creative
Play, Central Blood Bank of Pittsburgh,
Holy Family Institute, Housing Opportunities,
Inc., Junior Achievement, Pittsburgh
Community Storehouse, Pittsburgh Vision
Services, Steel Valley Enterprise Zone
Corporation, and The Wesley Foundation.

Our employees’ families are also important
to us. We sponsor scholastic awards for
employees’ children, host an educationally
focused Child to Work Day, and provide an
annual family picnic.

This spirit of excellence—serving customers,
colleagues and community—makes the critical
difference in achieving results for you, our
shareholders.
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SeLECcTED CoNsOLIDATED FINaNciaL Data

Year Ended December 31,
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000 1990 1998

FINANCIAL COMDITION DATA

$858,035 $863,836 $889,169 $882,980 $823,322

317,278 338,456 423,316 457,684 436,232

484,068 457,008 402,101 355,240 332,332

Deposits 524,067 529,691 522,485 495,124 482,548
Borrowed funds 221,575 229,575 268,598 297,160 222,545
Shareholders’ equity 100,541 96,940 92,648 84,571 109,216

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Interest income $ 50,880 $ 56,814 $ 59,049 $ 56,645 $ 55,205

Interest expense 28,245 33,882 36,296 33,388 31,639
INEt INLETESE INCOMIE cu.vrvveverirrei ittt e sebses e eererere e ersaes 22,615 22,932 22,753 23,257 23,566
Provision for loan losses 937 1,075 630 390 360
Net interest income after provision for loan losses...........cccccccerrnnnnnns 21,678 21,857 22,123 22,867 23,206
INORINEETESt INCOMIE 1.vviviiiireiereire st siere v st re et e ettt ere et se b e eresranes 4,354 3,518 3,829 3,810 4,717
Noninterest CXPEIISE 1vveivritiiriiir ettt 17,174 19,069 17,355 17,242 15,523
Income before provision for INCOME taXeS ..ovvvrrvvivririveovereereereenennn, 8,855 6,306 8,597 9,435 12,400
Provision for INCOME LAXES ...ovcvvivivinire s sbs s 2,411 1,140 1,945 2,320 4,158
INEE INCOIIE 11t sr b st $ 6,744 $ 5,166 $ 6,652 $ 7,115 $ 8242
PER COMMON SHARE DATA
Earnings - diluted ..ot $ 132 $ 1.00 $ 124 $ 122 $ 1.23
Cash dIVIAENAS ..vovuvveeeererirereerreseee e eees st se e e ssaniesenes 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.64 0.54
SEOCK PLICE vttt et 23.70 16.75 13.44 13.25 15.50
BOOK VAlUE veeveeirestsesinesiseeer et sssssssss ettt snan st sasasssasssnnns 19.54 17.92 16.48 13.59 15.51
Stock price to ook Valtie ... e 121.23 93.47 81.55 97.50 99.94
RATIOS
Performance:
Return on average assets ..... 0.78% 0.59% 0.76% 0.81% 1.01%
Return on average equity 6.73 5.27 7.79 7.61 7.73
Average equILy tO aVErage aSSELS .ot 11.65 11.17 9.80 10.67 1311
Shareholders” eqUILY 0 aSSETS......c.ccnmreccrmmminmeiemiiiiinnes s 11.72 11.22 10.42 9.58 13.26
Interest rate SPread ... e 2.39 2.33 2.47 2.46 237
Net Interest Margill...c.ceicinriiiininni e 2.81 2.90 2.94 2.99 3.03
LOans-t0-AEPOSIES ovvucorrusreiieeeriiiisstiins st et 92.37 86.28 76.96 71.75 68.87
Dividend Payoul... oo 54,85 72.00 58.06 52.46 43.90
Asset Quality:
Nonperforming loans to total loans.. 0.30% 0.33% 0.30% 0.42% 0.34%
Nonperforming assets to assets 0.18 0.19 0.15 0.21 0.23
Allowance for loan losses to total 10ans........coouiiinicmiin 0.80 0.70 0.56 0.49 0.48
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming assets 259.04 191.99 165.07 95.06 85.59

1 Balance represents total loans net of deferred fees.
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MAaNAGEMENT’s DiscussioN aND ANaLysIs oF FINanciaL CoNDITION AND REsULTs oF OPERATIONS

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated

financial statements, notes, and tables included in this report.

OVERVIEW

GA Financial, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in December
1995, and 1s the holding company for Great American Federal (the “Bank”),
a community bank and the Company’s principal subsidiary, New Eagle
Capital, Inc., an investment company, and the Bank’s wholly owned
subsidiaries, GA Financial Strategies, LLC, established in 2001 to provide
wealth management services, Steel City Investments, Inc. established in
December 2002 to hold and manage investment securities, and Great
American Financial Services, Inc., currently inactive.

In 1996, the Bank completed its conversion from a federally chartered
mutual savings and loan association to a stock form of ownership and,
simultaneously, the Company issued 8,900,000 shares of common stock,
utilizing a portion of the net proceeds to acquire all of the outstanding
stock of the Bank.

The Company currently transacts banking activities through Great
American Federal. The Bank, serving customers for over 85 years,
operates its administrative office in Whitehall, Pennsylvania and 12
community offices in Allegheny County located in southwestern
Pennsylvania. Through these office locations, the Bank offers a broad
array of consumer and commercial loan, deposit, and wealth management
products and services. In addition to conducting community banking
activities, the Bank invests in various marketable securities. New Eagle
Capital, Inc., the Company’s other subsidiary, operating as an investment
company in Wilmington, Delaware, also invests in various marketable
securities as well as marketable equity securities. The Company has 173
full-time equivalent employees at December 31, 2002. The Company
competes with local, regional, and national banks.

The Company’s results of operations are dependent primarily on net
interest income, which is the difference between the interest income
earned on interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities, and the
interest expense incurred on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits
and borrowed funds. The Company also generates noninterest income,
such as service fees, gains on the sale of education loans and securities,
trading account profits, earnings on bank owned life insurance, wealth
management fees, and other miscellaneous noninterest income. The
Company’s operating expenses consist primarily of compensation and
employee benefits, occupancy, furniture and equipment, marketing, and
other general and administrative expenses. The Company’s results of
operations are also significantly affected by general economic and
competitive conditions, particularly changes in market interest rates,
government policies, and actions of regulatory agencies.

Certain critical accounting policies affect the more significant
judgments and estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. The Company’s most critical accounting policy
relates to the Company’s allowance for loan losses, which reflects the
estimated losses resulting from the inability of the Company’s borrowers

to make required loan payments. If the financial condition of the

Company’s borrowers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, the Company’s estimates would be
updated, and additional provisions for loan losses may be required.

Further discussion of the estimates used in determining the allowance
for loan losses follows under caption “Allowance for Loan Losses” and in
“Note 1. Accounting Policies” located in the “Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.”

USES OF FUNDS

The Company’s primary use of funds is to conduct its investment and

lending activities as well as for other general business purposes.

INVESTMENT AGTIVITIES

General

The Company has the authority, as provided by its investment policy,
to invest in various types of assets, including United States (“U.S.")
Government and various federal agency securities, mortgage-backed
securities, collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs™), municipal
obligations, corporate debt obligations, marketable equity securities,
certain money market instruments, and repurchase agreements. Subject to
various restrictions, the Bank may also invest its assets in certain
investment-grade corporate debt obligations, mutual funds whose assets
conform to the investments that a federally-chartered savings institution is
otherwise authorized to make directly, and certain permissible equity
securities, The Company through its investment subsidiary, New Eagle
Capital, may invest in similar marketable securities, but additionally may
invest in common and preferred equity securities, real estate investment
trusts, general and limited partnerships, and mutual funds.

The investment policy of the Company, as approved by the Board of
Directors, requires management to maintain adequate liquidity, generate a
favorable return on investments without incurring undue interest rate and
credit risk as 2 complement to the Company’s lending activities. At
December 31, 2002, the Company’s investment securities generally
consisted of federal government-sponsored agency debt securities,
mortgage-backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, municipal
obligations, investment grade corporate debt obligations, and marketable
equity securities.

The Board of Directors monitors and ratifies the investment decisions
of the Company’s officers that have been authorized to manage the
investment portfolio (Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive
Officer). On at least a quarterly basis, the Asset/Liability Management
Committee also reviews the Company’s securities portfolio including the
market value of each security held, interest rate risk, and liquidity.

As required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments, Debt and Equity Securities,” the
Company’s securities portfolio is categorized as either held to maturity,
available for sale, or held for trading,
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U.S. Government and Agency Debit Securities

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $48.5 million of U.S.
government and federal agency debt securities, or 15.3% of total securities.
All were classified as available for sale securities. All government debt
securities are issued directly by the U.S. government, either through the
Treasury Department or through one of the many federal agencies
created by Congress. While government and agency debt carries very low
credit risk, such securities remain subject to the risk of a fluctuating
interest rate environment. Changes in interest rates may impact both the

yield and market value of such securities.

Worntgage-Backed Securilies

At December 31,2002, the Company had $166.7 million in mortgage-
backed securities, or 52.6% of total securities, which generally consisted
of mortgage-backed securities guaranteed by Government Natjonal
Mortgage Association or insured by either Federal National Mortgage
Association (“FNMA”) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
(“FHLMC”). All were classified as available for sale securities. Mortgage-
backed securities generally vield less than the mortgage loans that
underlie such securities because of the cost of guarantees or credit
enhancements that result in nominal credit risk. In addition, mortgage-
backed securities are more liquid than individual mortgage loans and may
be used to collateralize obligations of the Company.

While mortgage-backed securities carry a reduced credit risk as
compared to individual residential mortgage loans, such securities remain
subject to the risk that a fluctuating interest rate environment, along with
other factors such as the geographic distribution of the underlying mortgage
loans, may alter the prepayment rate of such mortgage loans and affect the
prepayment speed, yield, and value of such securities. Specifically, investments
in mortgage-backed securities involve prepayment risk. This is the risk that
the speed of the actual prepayments of the mortgage loans undetlying the
security may be greater than estimated prepayments over the life of the
security upon which the price and yield of the security is based. In the
event actual prepayments exceed estimated prepayments, adjustments may
be required to the amortization of any premium or accretion of any
discount relating to such inscruments thereby reducing the yield on such
securities. In addition, the market value of such securities may be

adversely impacted by changes in interest rates.

Collateralized Morigage Obligations

At December 31,2002, the Company had $9.1 million of CMOs, or
2.9% of total securities, consisting of CMOs issued by FHLMC and
FNMA. All were classified as available for sale securities. CMOs are a rype
of debt security issued by entities that aggregate pools of underlying fixed
and adjustable-rate mortgages or mortgage-backed securities and creates
different classes of CMO securities with different maturities and, in some
cases, amortization schedules as well as residual interest with each such

class possessing different risk characteristics. The cash flows from the

underlying collateral is generally divided into tranches or classes whereby
such tranches have descending priorities with respect to the distribution
of principal repayments from the underlying mortgages or mortgage-
backed securities. In contrast to mortgage-backed securities in which cash
flow is received and, accordingly, prepayment risk is shared pro rata by all
securities holders, the cash flows from the mortgages or mortgage-backed
securities underlying the CMOs are segmented and paid in accordance
with a predetermined priority to investors holding various tranches of
such securities or obligations. Accordingly, CMOs attempt to moderate
the reinvestment risk associated with conventional mortgage-backed
securities when prepayments of the mortgages underlying such securities
prepay faster than anticipated. CMOs are issued by federal agencies, such
as FNMA or FHLMC, and private issuers. The Company primarily
invests in CMOs issued by government agencies that are collateralized by
mortgage-backed securities.

While CMOs involve reduced credit risk, such securities remain
subject to the risk that a fluctuating interest rate environment may alter
the prepayment speed, yield, and value of such securities. Specifically,
investments in CMOs involve prepayment risk. This is the risk that the
speed of the actual prepayments of the mortgage loans or mortgage-
backed securities underlying the CMOs may be greater than estimated
prepayments over the life of the security upon which the price and yield
of the security is based. In the event actual prepayments exceed estimated
prepayments, adjustments may be required to the amortization of any
premium or accretion of any discount relating to such instruments thereby
reducing the yield on such securities. In addition, the market value of
such securities may be adversely affected by changes in interest rates.

Municipal Obligations

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $56.3 million of municipal
obligations, or 17.7% of total securities. All were classified as available for
sale securities. All municipal obligations are rated in one of the four
highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency. The Company
primarily invests in Pennsylvania municipal bonds that are issued by
school districts and municipalities. While municipal obligations carry low
credit risk, such securities remain subject to the risk of a fluctuating
interest rate environment. Changes in interest rates may impact both the

vield and market value of such securities.

Corporate Debt Obligations

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $21.0 million of corporate
debt obligations held as available for sale securities, or 6.6% of total
securities, and $3.0 million of held to maturity securities, or 0.9% of total
securities. The Company’s investments in corporate debt obligations, at
December 31, 2002, generally consisted of debt obligations issued by
large and medium sized U.S. and multinational corporate issuers. All
corporate debt obligations purchased by the Company are rated in one of
the four highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency.
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Investments in corporate debt obligations involve a moderate level of
credit risk as they are not insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government
or a federal agency. They generally are not secured by collateral and rely
upon future income from the operations of the issuer for repayment of
principal and interest. These securities are also subject to the risk of a
fluctuating nterest rate environment. Changes in interest rates may

impact both the yield and market value of such securides.

Warketable Equity Securities

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $12.6 million of marketable
equity securities, or 4.0% of total securities. All were classified as available
for sale securities. The Bank’s marketable equity securities portfolio of
$5.5 million is primarily comprised of permissible FHLMC stock and low
income housing tax credit investments while the New Eagle Capital, Inc.
marketable equity securities portfolio of §7.1 million consists primarily of
common and preferred equity securities.

The Company also had $129,000 in trading securities. The portfolio
was comprised entirely of FNMA stock, a permissible U.S. government
agency equity security.

LENDING ACTIVITIES

General

The Company’s loan portfolio consists of mortgage loans (residential,
multi-family, commercial real estate, and commercial and residential
construction and development), consumer loans (home equity, unsecured
personal, loans on deposit accounts, and automobile), commercial business
loans (secured and unsecured business), and education loans held for sale.

The types of loans that the Company may originate are subject to
federal and state laws and regulations. Interest rates charged by the
Company on loans are affected by the demand for such loans, the sources
of funds available for lending purposes, and the rates offered by
competitors. These factors are, in turn, affected by, among other things,
economic conditions, particularly changes in interest rates, government
policies, and actions of regulatory agencies.

The Company is cognizant that the origination of multi-family,
commercial real estate, commercial and residential construction and
development, and commercial business loans involve greater risk.
Payments are primarily dependent on the successful operation or
management of the properties/development or related business
enterprise, however, repayment of such loans may also be subject to
adverse conditions in the real estate market, specific industry and/or the
economy. The Company seeks to minimize these risks through its
underwriting standards.

Residential Morigage Loans
The Company offers residential mortgage loans primarily secured by
owner-occupied one-to-four family residences. Loan originations are

generally obtained from existing customers, members of the local

communities served, or referrals from local real estate agents, attorneys,
and builders. The Company originates both fixed-rate mortgage loans and
adjustable-rate mortgage loans. The volume and types of mortgage loans
originated by the Company have been affected by such market factors as
the level of interest rates, competition, consumer preferences, and the
avatlability of funds. Originated mortgage loans are secured by properties
located within the Company's primary market area of Allegheny, Beaver,
Butler, Fayette, Washington, and Westmoreland Counties, Pennsylvania.
However, in previous years, the Company purchased pooled residential
mortgage loans outside its primary market area.

Total residential mortgage loans at December 31, 2002 were $218.9
million, or 45.2% of total loans. Fixed rate mortgage loans were $166.8
million, or 34.5%, of total loans.

The Company has not sold one-to-four family mortgage loans in the
secondary market. Residential mortgage loans that are originated by the
Company are underwritten in conformity with FINMA secondary market
requirements. The Company has been approved by FNMA to sell mortgage
loans in the secondary market, and may sell loans to FNMA in the fure.

In an effort to provide financing for low and moderate income home
buyers, the Company offers a community mortgage program. These
mortgage loans are offered with terms of up to 30 years. Such loans must be
secured by a single family owner-occupied unit. These loans are originated
using modified underwriting guidelines with a reduced downpayment and a
discount on closing costs. Such loans are originated in amounts up to 97%
of the lower of the property’s value or the sales price. During 2002, the
Company originated 12 community mortgage loans totaling $690,000.

Multi-Family Mortgage Loans

The Company originates multi-family mortgage loans generally secured
by apartment buildings and other mult-family residential properties located
in the Company's primary market area. At December 31, 2002, mult-family
mortgage loans totaled $10.6 million, or 2.2% of the Company’ total loans.

Commercial Reat Estate Loans

The Company also offers commercial real estate loans that are secured by
propertes generally used for business purposes such as office buildings, retail
facilities, shopping centers, and industrial properties located in the Company’s
primary market area. In additon, the Company, from time to time, purchases
loan participations in commercial real estate loans. Loan participation
interests are subject to the same underwriting criteria as loans originated by
the Company. The Company’s commercial real estate loan portfolio at
December 31, 2002 was $100.4 million, or 20.7% of total loans.

Commercial and Residential Construction and Development Loans

The Company originates commercial loans for the construction and
development of office buildings, retail facilities, shopping centers, and
industrial properties located in the Company’s primary market area.
In addition, the Company originates loans for the construction and
development of one-to~four family residential properties which includes

acquisition and development loans to qualified developers, loans
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and lines of credit to qualified builders, and construction/permanent
financing for other individuals. At December 31, 2002, the Company
had $29.5 million of commercial and residential construction and
development loans, net of $21.6 million of loans in-process, which
constituted 6.1% of the Company’s total loans.

Consumer Loans

The Company offers consumer loans consisting of home equity
(installment loans and lines of credit), unsecured personal (installment
loans, personal lines of credit, and credit cards), loans on deposit accounts,
and auromobile loans. Consumer loans are generally originated in the
Company’s primary market area. However, in previous years, the
Company purchased pooled home equity loans outside its primary
market area not serviced by the Company. At December 31, 2002, the
Company’s consumer loans totaled $79.1 million or 16.3% of the
Company'’s total loan portfolio. The balance is comprised primarily of
home equity loans which totaled $75.0 million.

Commercial Business Loans

The Company offers secured and unsecured commercial business
loans. Such loans may be made to individuals, partnerships, proprietorships,
or corporations, and may be secured, unsecured, or partially secured. At
December 31, 2002, commercial business loans totaled $30.9 million or
6.4% of total loans of which $23.2 million were secured and $7.6 million

were unsecured.

Education Loans Held for Sale

The Company participates in the United States Department of
Education Title IV loan programs commonly referred to as the Federal
Family Education Loan Programs (“FFELP”). The loans in this program
include the Federal Subsidized Stafford Loan, the Federal Unsubsidized
Stafford Loan, and the Federal Parent Loan to Undergraduate Students
(PLUS) Loan. Loans are guaranteed to at least 98% of principal plus
eligible interest by the full faith and credit of the United States
Government if serviced propetly.

Education loans held by the Company are serviced and guaranteed by
the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (“PHEAA™). The
Company underwrites, operates and administrates participation in the
FFELP under the policies and procedures outlined in the common
manual of unified student loan policy for loans guaranteed by PHEAA. At
December 31, 2002, education loans totaled $14.8 million, or 3.1% of the
Company’s total loans. The Company sells education loans when they
reach repayment status.

Loan Servicing

The Company generally services loans in its own portfolio, but relies
upon third party loan servicers for the servicing of purchased loans
including certain purchased pooled residential mortgage, home equity,
and commercial participation loans. Loan servicing includes collecting

and remitting loan payments, accounting for principal and interest,
making inspections as required of mortgage premises, contacting
delinquent borrowers, supervising foreclosures and property dispositions
in the event of un-remedied defaults, making certain insurance and tax
payments on behalf of the borrowers, and generally administering the
loans. At December 31, 2002, the Company had $304.3 million of loans
serviced by the Company and $179.8 million of loans serviced by others.

Delinquencies and Classified Assels

Management performs a monthly review of each loan 90 days or more
past due while also reviewing a summary of the aggregate level of
nonperforming loans 90 days or more past due. Management reviews on
an ongoing basis all loans 30 or more days delinquent. The actions taken
by the Company with respect to delinquencies vary depending on the
nature of the loan and period of delinquency. In the case of residential
mortgage loans 90 days or more past due, the Bank generally initiates
legal action and will commence foreclosure proceedings against any real
property that secures the loan. If a foreclosure action is instituted and
the loan is not brought current, paid in full, or refinanced before the
foreclosure sale, the real property securing the loan is generally acquired
through foreclosure.

Federal regulations and the Company’s Asset Review and Reserve
Policy require that the Company utilize an internal asset classification
system as a means of reporting problem and potential problem assets. The
Company has incorporated the Office of Thrift Supervision’s (“OTS”)
asset classifications as part of its credit monitoring system. The Company
currently classifies problem and potential problem assets as “Substandard,”
“Doubtful,”“Loss,” or “Special Mention” assets. An asset is considered
“Substandard” if it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and
paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any.
“Substandard” assets include those characterized by the distinct possibility
that the insured institation will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are
not corrected. Assets classified as “Doubtful” have all of the weaknesses
inherent in those classified as “Substandard” with the added characteristic
that the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the
basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable
and improbable. Assets classified as “Loss” are those considered uncollectible
and of such little value that their continuance as assets without the
establishment of a specific loss reserve is not warranted. Assets which do
not currently expose the insured institution to sufficient risk to warrant
classification in one of the aforementioned categories but possess weaknesses
are required to be designated “Special Mention.” At December 31, 2002,
the Company had $1.5 million of assets classified as “Substandard,” $6,000
of assets classified as “Loss,” $3.9 million of assets classified as “Special
Mention,” and no assets classified as “Doubtful”

For regulatory purposes, when an insured institution classifies one or
more assets, ot portions thereof, as “Substandard” or “Doubtful,” it is
required to establish a general valuation allowance in an amount deemed
prudent by management. The general valuation allowance, which is a
regulatory term, represents a loss allowance which has been established to
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recognize the inherent risk associated with lending activities, but which,
unlike specific allowances, has not been allocated to particular problem
assets. When an insured institution classifies one or more assets, or
portions thereof, as “Loss,” it is required either to establish a specific
allowance for losses equal to 100% of the amount of the asset so classified
or to charge-off such amount. For financial reporting purposes, the
Company follows the guidelines of SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of 2 Loan” and SFAS No. 118, Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and
Disclosures,” an amendment of SFAS No. 114, SFAS No. 114 addresses
the accounting by creditors for impairment of loans by specifying how
reserves for credit losses related to certain loans should be measured.
SFAS No. 118 rescinded SFAS No.114 rules to permit a creditor to use
existing methods for recognizing interest income on impaired loans and
eliminated the income recognition provisions of SFAS No. 114.

An institution’s determination as to the classification of its assets and
the amount of its valuation allowances is subject to review by the OTS
which can order the establishment of additional general or specific
valuation allowances. The OTS, in conjunction with the other federal
banking agencies, has adopted an interagency policy statement on the
allowance for loan losses. The policy statement provides guidance for
financial institutions on both the responsibilities of management for the
assessment and establishment of adequate allowances and guidance for
banking agency examiners to use in determining the adequacy of general
valuation guidelines. Generally, the policy statement recommends that
institutions have effective systems and controls to identify, monitor, and
address asset quality problems; that management has analyzed all
significant factors that affect the collectibility of the portfolic in a
reasonable manner; and that management has established acceptable
allowance evaluation processes that meet the objectives set forth in the
policy statement. While the Company believes that it has established an
appropriate allowance for loan losses, there can be no assurance that
regulators, in reviewing the Company’s loan portfolio, will not request
the Company to materially increase its allowance for loan losses, thereby
negatively affecting the Company’s financial condition and earnings at
that time. Although management believes that adequate specific and
general valuation allowances have been established, actual losses are
dependent upon future events and, as such, further additions to the level

of specific and general valuation allowances may become necessary.

Nonperforming Assets

It is the policy of the Company to cease accruing interest, when in
management’s judgement, it is determined that the collectibility of
interest, but not necessarily principal, is unlikely. An interest accrual is
normally discontinued when a loan becomes 90 days or more past due.
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999, and 1998, the

amount of additional interest income that would have been recognized

on nonaccrual loans, if such loans had continued to perform in
accordance with their contractual terms, was $33,000, $31,000, £61,000,
$138,000, and $147,000, respectively.

Foreclosed Assets

At December 31, 2002, the Company held three properties totaling
$34,000. When the Company acquires property through foreclosure or
deed-in-lieu of foreclosure, it is initially recorded at the lower of the
recorded investment in the corresponding loan or the fair value of the
related assets at the date of foreclosure, less estimated costs to sell the
property. Thereafter, if there is a further deterioration in value, the
Company charges operations for the decline in value. It is the policy of
the Company to have obtained an appraisal on all real estate subject to
foreclosure proceedings prior to the time of foreclosure. It is also the
Company’s policy to require appraisals, at least annually and at other times
determined necessary by management, on foreclosed properties and

conduct periodic inspections as deemed appropriate.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for
loan losses based on management’s evaluation of the risks inherent in its
loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at an amount
management considers appropriate to cover estimated losses in loans
which are deemed probable and estimable based on information currently
known to management. The Asset Classification Committee reviews and
approves the allowance for loan losses on at least a quarterly basis. The
allowance is based upon a number of factors, including current regional
and national economic conditions, industry trends, actual loss experience,
and changes in the nature of the loan portfolio. In addition, various
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process,
periodically review the Company’s allowance for loan losses. Such
agencies may require the Company to make additional provisions for
estimated loan losses based upon judgments different from those of
management. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company’s allowance
for loan losses to total loans was 0.80% and 0.70%, respectively. The
Company had nonperforming loans of §1.5 million at December 31,
2002 and 2001, primarily comprised of residential mortgages and home
equity loans. The Company will continue to monitor and modify its
allowance for loan losses as conditions dictate. While management
believes the Company’s allowance for loan losses is sufficient to cover
losses inherent in its loan portfolio at this time, no assurances can be
given that the Company level of allowance for loan losses will be
sufficient to cover future loan losses incurred by the Company or that
fature adjustments to the allowance for, loan losses will not be necessary if
economic and other conditions differ substantially from the economic and
other conditions used by management to determine the current level of

the allowance for loan losses.
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SOURCES OF FUNDS

The Company’s primary sources of funds include deposits, loan and
investment security repayments and prepayments, proceeds from sales,
calls, and maturities of securities, Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”)
advances, securities sold under agreement to repurchase, and cash flows

generated from operations.

DEPOSIT ACTIVITIES

The Company offers a variety of deposit products with ranges of
interest rates and terms. The Company’s deposits consist of noninterest-
bearing (checking accounts) and interest-bearing (checking accounts,
money market deposit accounts, savings accounts, and certificates of
deposit). The flow of deposits is influenced significantly by general and
regional economic conditions, prevailing interest rates, and competition.
The Company’s deposits are obtained predominantly from the areas in
which its community offices are located. To attract and retain deposits, the
Company relies primarily on offering a broad array of deposit products,
pricing its deposit products at competitive rates, providing strong
customer service, and maintaining its long-standing relationships with
customers. The Company uses traditional means to advertise its deposit
products, including radio and print media. Currently, the Company does
not use brokers to obtain deposits.

BORROWING ACTIVITIES

The Company utilizes advances from the FHLB as an alternative
funding source to deposits. These FHLB advances are collateralized by
certain of the Company’s securities and loans. FHLB advances are made
pursuant to various credit programs, each of which has its own interest rate
and range of maturities, The maximum amount that the FHLB will
advance to member institutions, including the Company, fluctuates from
time to time in accordance with the policies of the OTS and the FHLB. At
December 31, 2002 the Company had $221.6 million of FHLB advances.

MANAGEMENT OF INTEREST RATE AND MARKET RISKS

The principal objective of the Company’s interest rate risk management
function is to evaluate the interest rate risk included in certain balance
sheet accounts, determine the level of risk appropriate given the Company’s
business strategy, operating environment, capital and liquidity requirements
and performance objectives, and manage the risk consistent with Board of
Director approved guidelines. Through such management, the Company
monitors its interest rate risk and seeks to reduce the vulnerability of its
operations to changes in interest rates. The Company’s Board of Directors
has established an Asset/Liability Management Committee, which is
responsible for reviewing its asset/liability policies, securities portfolio,
interest rate risk position, liquidity and meets at least on a quarterly basis.
The Asset Liability Management Committee reviews trends in interest
rates, changes in the market value of the Company’s investment securities
portfolio, all investment security purchases, sales, maturities, and calls, the

financial position of the Company, the Company’ actual performance to
budgeted performance, the Company’s interest rate position as measured
by changes in its net income and net portfolio value under certain
interest rate scenarios, and the projected impact of such interest rate
scenarios on its earnings and capital. The extent of the movement of
interest rates is an uncertainty that could have a negative impact on the
earnings of the Company.

In recent years, the Company has utilized the following strategies to
manage interest rate risk: (1) purchasing adjustable interest rate and shorter
term fixed-rate mortgage-backed and related securites; (2) investing in
shorter term fixed-rate corporate debt and government agency bonds or
in such types of bonds with adjustable interest rates; (3) originating shorter
term and adjustable interest rate commercial, residential mortgage, and
consumer loan products; and (4) emphasizing longer term deposits. To
manage the interest rate risk of the Company, the Board of Directors has
also established parameters relating to the types of securities in which the
Company may invest and parameters relating to the types of deposits
which may be offered by the Company and rates which may be paid on
such deposits.

Market risk is the risk of losses resulting from adverse changes in
market pricing and rates. The Company’s market risk is primarily its
interest rate risk associated with its investing, lending, deposit, and
borrowing activities. Interest rate risk arises when interest rates on assets
change in a different time period or in a different proportion from that of
liabilities. Management actively monitors its interest rate sensitivity
position with the primary objective to prudently structure the balance
sheet so that movements of interest rates on assets and Liabilities are highly
correlated and produce a reasonable net interest margin even in periods
of volatile interest rates. Interest rate risk is considered by management to
be the Company’s most significant market risk that could materially
impact the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

NET PORTFOLIO VALUE

The Bank’s interest rate sensitivity is monitored by management through
the use of models which estimate changes in the Bank’s net portfolio value
(“NPV”) over a range of interest rate scenarios. NPV is the net present
value of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet
contracts. The NPV ratio, under any interest rate scenario, is defined as the
NPV in that scenario divided by the market value of assets in that same
scenario. The following table indicates the Bank’s NPV at December 31,
2002, as calculated by the OTS, and indicates the value of the Bank’s
assets and labilities which would result in a decline in the Bank’s NPV in
a rising or declining interest rate environment. Specifically, the table
indicates that, at December 31, 2002, the Bank’s NPV was $87.5 million
and that, based upon the assumptions utilized by the OTS, an immediate
increase in market interest rates of 300 basis points would result in a
$33.9 million, or 39% decrease in the Bank’s NPV, and an immediate
decrease in market rates of 100 basis points would result in a $1.7 million,
or 2% decrease in the Bank’s NPV. Due to the current low interest rate
environment, no change in interest rates down 200 or 300 basis points is
shown.
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Net Portfolio Yalue ({PY)

NPV as a Percentage of the
Market Value of Total Assels

December 31, 2002

(Dollars in thousands) Amouni Change ($) Change (%) NPV Ratio Change
Change in Interest Rates (basts points):
$ 53,607 $(33,875) (39)% 6.5% {343)bp
67,807 (49,675) (22) 8.0 (190)
81,011 (6,471) (7) 9.4 (57)
87,482 — - 10.0 —
85,796 {1,686) (2) 9.7 (30)

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the
interest rate risk measurements. Modeling changes in the NPV require
the making of certain assumptions which may or may not reflect the
manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in market
interest rates. In this regard, the NPV model presented assumes that the
composition of the Bank’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities
existing at the beginning of a period remains constant over the period
being measured and also assumes that a particular change in interest rates
is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration to
maturity or repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Accordingly,
although the NPV measurements and net interest income models provide
an indication of the Bank’s interest rate risk exposure at a particular point
in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide a
precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on the
Bank’s net interest income and will differ from actual results.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AT DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND
DECEMBER 31, 2001

Assets

The Company’s total assets were $858.0 million at December 31,
2002, a decrease of $5.8 mullion or 0.7% compared to total assets of
$863.8 million at December 31, 2001.

Cash decreased $8.5 million or 28.5% to $21.3 million at December
31,2002 due to repayments of borrowed funds and funding of loans.

Available for sale securities decreased $21.2 million or 6.3% to
$314.2 million at December 31, 2002 due to repayments, sales, calls,
and maturities. The Company had $992,000 securities sold, not settled at
December 31,2002 compared to $3.5 million of securities sold, not
settled at December 31, 2001.

Total loans increased $27.0 million or 5.9% to $484.1 million at
December 31, 2002 primarily due to increases in commercial real estate,
commercial business, and home equity loans. This increase was partially
offset by a decline in residential mortgage loans of which $7.8 million
was related to the Company’s sale of its Norwin community office and

the remaining amount from loan repayments.

Liahilities

Total liabilities were $757.5 million at December 31, 2002, a
decrease of $9.4 million or 1.2% compared to total labilities of §766.9
at December 31, 2001.

Total deposits decreased $5.6 million or 1.1% to $524.1 million due
primarily to a decline of $11.5 million in deposits related to the
Company’ sale of its Norwin community office.

Borrowed funds decreased $8.0 million or 3.5% to $221.6 million due
to the pay-off of FHLB advances at maturity. Alternative sources of
funding were provided by repayments of loans and securities, and sales,
calls, and maturities of securities.

Other liabilities increased $4.2 million or 117.4% to $7.9 million at
December 31,2002 due primarily to an increase in deferred taxes on

available for sale securities.

Shareholders’ Equity

Shareholders’ equity increased $3.6 million or 3.7% to $100.5 million
at December 31, 2002. This was due primarily to net income and an
increase in accumulated comprehensive income partially offset by
purchases of treasury stock and cash dividends paid.
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Average Balance Sheet and Nef Inlerest Analysis

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the Company’s average balance sheet and reflects the weighted average yield on assets
and weighted average cost of liabilities for the periods indicated. Such yields and costs are derived by dividing income or expense by the average balance
of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods presented.

Year Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest  Gost Balance Interest  Cost Balance Interest  Gost
ASSETS

Interest-Earning Assets. )
$ 29,850 § 440 1.47% $ 29683 $ 1062 3.58% $ 15852 $ 824  5.20%

Deposits...
SECUIIHIES'  1vereeereee e enenenas 314,035 17,735 5.85 375,040 24,013 6.40 432,741 30,518 7.05
Loans, Net .o 475,806 33,851 744 430,531 32,503 7.55 369,745 28,350 7.67
FHLB StocK vvoveuieccecccriiceicicnieenas 14,293 402 3.56 13,615 887 6.51 15,458 1,082 7.06
Total interest—earnjng assets ......... $830,984 § 52,428 6.31% $848,869 $ 58,465 6.89%  $833,796 $ 60,784  7.29%
Noninterest-earning assets ....ouveceeeess 28,945 27,870 37,893
Total a556tS.cuuriivniriirereiiririseseeeseeenes $859,929 $876,739 $871,689

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:

Checking accounts............cceceee. $ 40,030 $ 227 057% $ 39210 $ 419  1.07% $ 37,204 §$ 593  1.59%

Money market deposit accounts 66,681 1,545 2.32 67,487 2,457  3.64 63,490 3,443 542
Savings acCoUnts oo 144,466 3,274 231 124,104 2,961 239 136,745 3,268 2.39
Certificates of deposit ..o 247,223 12,028 4.87 263,470 14,843 5,63 237,080 12,982 5.48
Total interest-bearing deposits....... 485,400 17,074 3.45 494,271 20,680 4.18 474,519 20,287 4.28
Borrowed funds...........cccocciiininnnnn 222,649 11,139 5.00 247,213 13,174 5.33 276,321 15,979 5.78
Other. ..o 1,955 35 179 1,500 28 1.87 1,444 30 2.08
Total interest-bearing liabilities ..... $720,004 $ 28,245 3.82% $742,984 $ 33,882 4.56% $752,284 $ 36,296 4.82%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities ........... 32,376 31,002 30,797
All other noninterest-
bearing liabilities ........c.cocccoccrnnennn 7,364 4,804 3,214
Total noninterest-bearing liabilities... 39,737 35,806 34,011
Shareholders’ equity ....ocooenneianan, 100,188 97,949 85,394
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity ..., $859,929 $876,739 $871,689
Net interest INCOME ..oviivvviinirireeeeeeeererians $ 24,183 $ 24,583 $ 24,488
Interest rate spread’.... 2.39% 2.33% 2.47%
Net interest margin® 2.91% 2.90% 2.94%

1 Includes unamortized discounts and premiums.

2 Includes municipal obligations; yield and income are stated on a taxable equivalent basis.

3 Amount is net of deferred fees, undisbursed funds, discounts and premiums, estimated allowances for loan losses, and includes education loans held for sale and nenperforming loans.
4 Interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on interest-earning assets and the cost of interest-bearing liabilities on a taxable equivalent basis.

5 Net interest margin represents net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis divided by average interést-earning assets.
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REVIEW OF THE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF QPERATIONS FOR THE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2001

Net Incame
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased $1.6
million or 30.5% from the previous year to $6.7 million. Changes in the

components of net income are discussed herein.

Interest Income

Total interest income decreased $6.0 million ($6.0 million on a taxable
equivalent basis) or 10.5% to $50.9 million for the year ended 2002. This
was primarily the result of a decrease of 58 basis points in the average yield
on average interest-earning assets, and a decrease of $17.9 million in average
interest-earning assets. Taxable equivalent interest on securities decreased
$6.3 million or 26.1%, due to a decrease in the average balance of $61.0
million or 16.3%, and a decrease in the average yield of 75 basis points.
Interest on loans increased $1.3 million or 4.1% to $33.9 million due to an
increase in the average balance of $45.3 million or 10.5%, partially offset by
a decrease in the average yield on loans of 44 basis points. The dividends on
FHLB stock decreased $485,000 or 54.7% to $402,000 in 2002 due to a
decrease of $2.3 million in the average balance resulting from the
redemption of FHLB stock in the year 2002 and a decrease in the average
yield of 295 basis points. The Bank is required to own FHLB stock based on
the levels of its FHLB borrowings.

Interest Expense

Toral interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities decreased $5.6
million or 16.6% due to a decrease in the average balance of interest-
bearing liabilides of $23.0 million or 3.1% to $720.0 million and also a
decrease in the average cost of 64 basis points. The interest expense on
interest-bearing deposits decreased $3.6 million or 17.5% to $17.1
million for 2002 due to a decrease of 73 basis points in the average cost,
partially offset by an increase in the average balance of §1.1 million. The
interest expense on borrowed funds decreased $2.0 million or 15.4% due
primarily to a decrease in the average cost of 33 basis points and by a
decrease in the average balance of §24.6 million or 9.9%. This reduction
was due to the pay-off of FHLB advances at maturity.

et interest Income-Rate/Volume Analysis

Net interest income for 2002 was $22.6 million, a decrease of $317,000
(8400,000 on a taxable equivalent basis) or 1.4% compared to 2001. The
following table presents the extent to which changes in rate and changes
in volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have
affected the Company’s interest income on a taxable equivalent basis and
interest expense during the period indicated. Information is provided
with respect to: {1) changes attributable to changes in volume (changes in
volume multiplied by prior rate); (2) changes attributable to changes in
rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); and (3) the net change.
The changes attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate
have been allocated proportionately between volume and rate.

2002 Compared to 2001

Year Ended December 31, Increase (Decrease) Due To

(Dallars in thousands) Yolume Rate Total
Interest-Earning Assets:
Interest-bearing deposits................ $ 6 $ (628) §$ (622)
SECUTIHIES. . cvivresvvirnriin e srrenenrerees (3,649) (2,6289) (6,278)
Loans, Net .. coiiiierverereinie s 3,023 {1,875) 1,348
FHLB $tock ..coovuvevvinniiiiiciiinn (132) {353) (485)
Total interest-earning assets....... $ (752) $(5,285) $(8,037)
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Checking accounts....c.eoveeovinenn. $ 9 $ (201) $ (192)
Money market deposit accounts.... (29) (883) (912)
Savings accounts 407 97) 310
Certificates of deposit .... (883) (1,932) (2,815)
Borrowed funds (1,254) (781)  (2,035)
Other oooivvieereeeeesiseenrs e ' 8 (1) 7
Total interest-bearing liabilities .. $(1,742)  $(3,895)  $(5,637)
Change in net interest income...... $ 9% $(1,3%0)  $ (400)

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2002 was
£937,000 compared to $1.1 million for the year ended 2001. The
allowance for loan losses to total loans and nonperforming assets was 0.80%
and 259%, respectively, at December 31, 2002 as compared to 0.70% and
192%, respectively, at December 31, 2001. The current year provision was
influenced by strong loan production, strategic growth in commercial real
estate, business and construction/development loans and current economic
conditions. Substantially all of the increase in the provision was related to
growth in commercial real estate and related loans. Nonperforming loans,
primarily comprised of residential mortgages and consumer home equity
loans, were $1.5 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
Company monitors all nonperforming loans which could impact the
provision for loan losses. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at an
amount management considers appropriate to cover estimated losses on
loans which are deemed probable based on information currently known to
management. While management believes the Company’s allowance for loan
losses is sufficient to cover losses in its loan portfolio at this time, no
assurances can be given that the Company’s level of allowance for loan losses
will be sufficient to cover future loan losses incurred by the Company, or
that future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses will not be necessary
if economuic and other conditions differ substantially from the economic and
other conditions analyzed by management to determine the current level of

the allowance for loan losses.

Noninterest Income

Total noninterest income increased $833,000 or 23.7% to $4.4 mullion for
2002. This was due primarily to a $905,000 gain on sale of the Company’s
Norwin community office, and a decrease in the writedown of securities of
$566,000. This increase was partially offset by decreases of $490,000 in net
gains on the sales of available for sale securities, $126,000 in other
noninterest income, and $106,000 in income from trading securities.
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Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense decreased $1.9 million or 9.9% to $17.2
million for 2002. This was due primarily to a decrease in compensation and
employee benefit costs of $838,000, other operating expenses of $716,000,
marketing expenses of $375,000, and occupancy expenses of $255,000. This
decrease was partially offset by increases in furniture and equipment
expenses of $185,000 and losses of $110,000, related to the closure of the
Company’s North Versailles Wal-Mart based satellite branch office.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes increased $971,000 or 85.2% to §2.1
million for 2002. The effective tax rate for 2002 was 23.8% as compared
to 18.1% for 2001, This increase was primarily the result of an increase in

pretax income combined with a decrease in nontaxable income.

REVIEW OF THE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERAT!ONS FOR THE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

Net income
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased $1.5
million or 22.3% from the previous year to $5.2 million. Changes in the

components of net income are discussed herein.

inferest Income

Total interest income decreased $2.2 million ($2.3 million on a taxable
equivalent basis) or 3.8% to $56.8 million for the year ended 2001. This
was primarily the result of a decrease of 40 basis points in the average
vield on average interest-earning assets, partially offset by an increase of
$15.1 million in average interest-earning assets. Interest on loans increased
$4.2 million or 14.6% to $32.5 million due to the increase in the average
balance of $60.8 million or 16.4%, partially offset by a decrease in the
average yield on loans of 12 basis points. Taxable equivalent interest on
securities decreased $6.5 million or 21.3%, due to a decrease in the
average balance of $57.7 million or 13.3%, and a decrease in the average
yield of 65 basis points. The dividends on FHLB stock decreased
$205,000 or 18.8% to $887,000 in 2001 due to a decrease of $1.8 million
in the average balance resulting from the redemption of FHLB stock in
the year 2001 and a decrease in the average vield of 55 basis points. The
Bank is required to own FHLB stock based on the levels of its FHLB

borrowings.

Inferest Expense

Total interest expense on interest-bearing labilities decreased $2.4
million or 6.7% due to a decrease in the average balance of interest-
bearing liabilities of $9.3 million or 1.2% to $743.0 million and also a
decrease in the average cost of 26 basis points. The interest expense on
interest-bearing deposits increased $393,000 or 1.9% to $20.7 million for
2001 due to an increase in the average balance of $19.8 million, partially

offset by a decrease of 10 basis points in the average cost. The interest

expense on borrowed funds decreased $2.8 million or 17.6% due
primarily to a decrease in the average cost of 45 basis points and by a
decrease in the average balance of $29.1 million or 10.5%. This reduction
was due to the pay-off of FHLB advances at maturity.

Met Interest Income-Rate/Nolume Analysis

Net interest income for 2001 was $22.9 million, an increase of $179,000
(895,000 on a taxable equivalent basis) or 0.8% compared to 2000. The
following table presents the extent to which changes in rate and changes
in volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have
affected the Company’s interest income on a taxable equivalent basis and
interest expense during the period indicated. Information is provided with
respect to: (1) changes attributable to changes in volume (changes in
volume multiplied by prior rate); (2) changes attributable to changes in
rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); and (3) the net change.
The changes attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate have
been allocated proportionately between volume and rate.

2001 Compared {o 2000

Year Ended December 31, Increase (Decrease) Due To

(Dollars in thousandgs) Volume Raie Toial
Interest-Earning Assets:
Interest-bearing deposits $ (132) $ 238
SECUIEIES vvvevirivvii ittt (2,659) (6,505)
Loans, net....ocoveiiieiiiiveninieessnienn, 437) 4,153
EHLB $tock coveevviiiviiieciiiven e, (81) (205)
Total interest-earning assets....... $ 990 $(3,309)  $(2,319)
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Checking accounts...........coouvevnn. $ 35 $ (209) % (174)
Money market deposit accounts.... 234 {1,220) (986)
Savings acCOUNts .coovrcevivvcerciincencnnee (308) — (308)
Certificates of deposit ..........coveenn. 1,493 368 1,861
Borrowed funds (1,613) (1,192} (2,805)
Other ot 1 (3) (2)
Total interest-bearing liabilities .. $ (158) $(2,256)  $(2,414)
Change in net interest income...... $1,148 $(1,053) $ 95

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2001
was $1.1 million compared to $630,000 for the year ended 2000.The
allowance for loan losses to total loans and nonperforming assets was
0.70% and 192%, respectively, at December 31, 2001 as compared to
0.56% and 165%, respectively, at December 31, 2000. The current year
provision was influenced by strong loan production, strategic growth in
commercial real estate, business and construction/development loans and
current economic conditions. Substantially all of the increase in the
provision was related to growth in commercial real estate and related
loans. Nonperforming loans, primarily comprised of residential mortgages
and consumer home equity loans, increased from $1.2 million at
December 31, 2000 to $1.5 million at December 31, 2001. The Company
monitors all nonperforming loans which could impact the provision for
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loan losses. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at an amount
management considers appropriate to cover estimated losses on loans
which are deemed probable based on information currently known to
management. While management believes the Company’s allowance for
loan losses is sufficient to cover losses in its loan portfolio at this time, no
assurances can be given that the Company’s level of allowance for loan
losses will be sufficient to cover future loan losses incurred by the
Company, or that future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses will
not be necessary if economic and other conditions differ substantially
from the economic and other conditions analyzed by management to

determine the current level of the allowance for loan losses.

Noninterest Income

Total noninterest income decreased §311,000 or 8.1% to $3.5 million
for 2001. Service fees on deposit products decreased $96,000 from 2000.
Net gains on the sales of available for sale securities increased $412,000.
The Company recorded a non-cash charge of $730,000 reflecting the
Company’s assessment of an other-than-temporary decline in the
valuation of certain securities in the third quarter of 2001. The Company
subsequently sold these securities in 2001. The Company had a decrease
in trading security gains of $25,000 which primarily consisted of equity
securities. Gains on the sale of education loans increased $50,000 due to
the timing of education loan sales. Education loans are sold as they reach
repayment status. Other income increased $58,000 primarily due to the
sale of a former branch facility.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense increased $1.7 million or 9.9% to $19.1
million for 2001. This was due primarily to an increase in compensation
and employee benefits, partially the result of changes in management,
increased occupancy and furniture and equipment due in part to the
establishment of a new branch location and investments in technology,
and increased marketing and other miscellaneous operating expenses.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes decreased $805,000 or 41.4% to $1.1
million for 2001. The effective tax rate for 2001 was 18.1% as compared
to 22.6% for 2000. This decrease was primarily the result of a reduction
in pretax income, coupled with an increase in tax credits recognized from
a low income housing tax credit investment.

OTHER MATTERS

Liguidity Resources

The Company’s primary sources of funds are deposits, repayments of
loans and securities, sales, calls and maturities of securities, advances from
the FHLB, and other borrowed funds. While scheduled maturities of
securities and the amortization of loans are predictable sources of funds,
deposit flows and prepayments on mortgages, and mortgage-backed and
related securities are greatly influenced by market interest rates, economic

conditions, and competition.

Liquidity can be analyzed by utilizing the “Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows”. Net cash provided by operating activities was $9.7 million.
Net cash provided by investing activities was $4.3 nullion. Net cash used
in financing activities was $22.5 million. Overall, cash and cash
equivalents decreased $8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to 2001.

Management believes the Company has sufficient liquidity to meet
current obligations to borrowers, depositors, debt holders, and others.

Capital Resources

The Company is not required to maintain any minimum level of
capital; however, the Bank is subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the OTS.

At December 31, 2002, the Bank had exceeded the OTS requirements
for tier I core (leverage), tier I and total risk-based, and tangible capital.
The OTS requires the Bank to maintain a minimum 4.00% core capital
ratio (expressed as a percentage of adjusted total assets), a minimum tier
tisk-based capital ratio of 4.00% and total risk-based capital ratio of 8.00%
(both expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted assets, which includes
off-balance sheet items), and a minimum tangible capital ratio of 1.50%
of tangible assets, as defined by the OTS.The Bank has consistently
maintained all regulatory capital ratios at or above the well-capitalized
standards. “Note 11. Capital Requirements and Regulatory Restrictions”
located in the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” provides
further detail regarding the Company’s capital adequacy.

Other

The Company announced in the first quarter of 2002 that it selected
Kirchman Bankway™ as its core operating system solution. The Company is
making this investment to support its longer term profitability goals, enhance its
speed to market in developing and introducing new competitive products, and
improve its already high level of customer service. The conversion to the
new system was completed in the first quarter of 2003.

The Company announced in the third quarter of 1998 that after a
comprehensive study of its DataOne data processing division, it would no
longer provide data processing services for other financial institutions. The
study included an analysis of strategic business planning objectives, a
review of the current data processing system and its operation, as well as a
review of the competition in the data processing service arena. Two of the
three external clients of DataOne were deconverted prior to the year
2000 and the remaining client was deconverted during the first six
months of the year 2000.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In Qctober 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,“Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which addresses financial
accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets. SFAS No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed Of”’; however, it retains many of the fundamental provisions of
SFAS No. 121.
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SFAS No. 144 also supersedes the accounting and reporting provisions
of Accounting Principles Board Opinion, (*APB”) No. 30, “Reporting the
Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a business. However, it
retains the requirement in APB No. 30 to report separately discontinued
operations and extends that reporting to a component of an entity that
either has been disposed of (by sale, abandonment, or in a distribution to
owners) or is classified as held for sale. By broadening the presentation of
discontinued operations to include more disposal transactions, the FASB
has enhanced management’s ability to provide information that helps
financial statement users to assess the effects of a disposal transaction on
the ongoing operations of an entity.

SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2001 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The provisions of
SFAS No. 144 generally are to be applied prospectively. The adoption of
SFAS No. 144 had no impact on the financial position, results of
operations, or liquidity of the Company.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This statemnent addresses
financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal
activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to
Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).”
The provisions of SFAS No. 146 are effective for exit and disposal activities
that are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early application encouraged.
The adoption of SFAS No. 146 is not expected to have a material effect on
the financial position, results of operations, or liquidity of the Company.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, (“FIN
45”), “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.”
This interpretation elaborates on the existing disclosures to be made by a
guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain
guarantees that it has issued (“disclosure requirements”). This interpretation
also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at inception of a
guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in
issuing the guarantee (“recognition and measurement provisions™). The
initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45 are
applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements in FIN 45 are effective
for financial statements of interim and annual periods ending after
December 15,2002. The Company's disclosure of guarantees is included
in “Note 13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments/Concentration of Credit
Risk” located in the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.”
The adoption of FIN 45 is not expected to have a material effect on the
financial position, results of operations, or liquidity of the Company.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure,” an amendment of
SFAS No.123. This statement amends SFAS No. 123 to provide alternative
methods of transition for voluntary change to the fair value based method
of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. SFAS No. 148 also

amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent
disclosure on both annual and interim financial statements about the
method of accounting for stock-based compensation and the effect of the
method used on reported results. The transition alternatives of SFAS

No. 148 are available for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The
adoption of SFAS No. 148 did not have a material effect on the financial
position, results of operations, or liquidity of the Company.

Impact of Inilation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements, notes, and tables of the
Company included in this report, have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, which require the measurement
of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars
without considering the change in the relative purchasing power of
money over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation is reflected in
the increased cost of the Company’s operations. Unlike most industrial
comparies, nearly all the assets and liabilities of the Company are
monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on the
Company’s performance than do the effects of general levels of inflation.
Interest rates do not necessarily move in the direction or to the same

extent as the price of goods and services.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains certain forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The
Company intends such forward-looking statements to be covered by the
safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and is including this
statement for purposes of these safe harbor provisions. Forward-looking
statements, which are based on certain assumptions and describe future
plans, strategies, and expectations of the Company, are generally identified

LIRS I RT3 2

by use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,”
“project,” or similar expressions. The Company’s ability to predict results
or the actual effect of future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain.
Factors which could have a material adverse effect on the operations of
the Company include, but are not limited to: changes in interest rates,
general economic conditions, legislative/regulatory changes, monetary
and fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, including policies of the U.S.
Treasury and the Federal Reserve Board, the quality or composition of
the loan or investment portfolios, demand for loan products, deposit
flows, competition, demand for financial services in the Company’s
market area, and accounting principles and guidelines. These risks and
uncertainties should be considered in evaluating forward-looking
statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements.
Except as required by applicable law and regulation, the Company does
not undertake—and specifically disclaims any obligation—to publicly release
the result of any revisions which may be made to any forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements

or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of GA Financial, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of GA Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and
2001 and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of GA Financial,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year

period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

KPie UP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
January 30, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINaNcIAL CONDITION

December 39,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounis)

2002

2001

ASSETS

Cash (including interest-bearing deposits of $16,415 and $24,950) $ 21,343 $ 29,859
Held for trading securities, at fair value 129 159
Available for sale securities, at fair value 314,196 335,383
Held to maturity securities, at cost (fair value-of $3,157 and $3,138) 2,951 2,914
Total securities 317,276 338,456
Education loans held for sale.... 14,795 14,732
Loans (net of deferred fees of $107 and $330) 489,273 442,276
Total loans 484,068 457,008
Allowance for loan losses (3,898) (3,210)
Net loans 480,472 453,798
Accrued interest receivable on securities 2,323 2,192
Accrued interest receivable on loans 3,125 3,429
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 12,019 12,429
Premises and equipment, net 6,282 7,069
Foreclosed assets 34 154
Securities sold, not settled 882 3,472
Prepaid expenses and other assets 14,482 12,978
Total assets $858,035 $863,836
LIABILITIES
Noninterest-bearing deposits $ 30,701 $ 31,671
[Nterest-Dearing dEPOSIES ... .. v ivceceimrncesisrrirrsnesreeeeseeseeseeeesses st ettt eessesssssesassesseseesecssessessssnsnssnes 493,366 498,020
TOLAL QEPOSIES evveeereeeecerrereerserrerseer e seese bbbt bbb e et es e 524,087 529,691
BOTFOWEA fUIAS ..ot ceeeeceereenemecrcece et e s bR 221,575 229,575
Advances from customers for taxes, insurance, and Other.......c.cc.oocoruiiicrcrivsveees e 2,372 1,886
Accrued INEETESt PAVADLE ....vvcureeirrreieeeeie e s nn s 1,620 2,129
OHET HADIEIES 1.vvvvcvieivivieieieeeitiraestete ettt teie st atestet e st ar b et atare vt starsseste e st et eeetatetastasarnranssesranesesressons 7,860 3,615
TOLA] HADIHEIES ..viviviviviiiiiiiiiinieieeees ettt ee s s bbb b sasn e srenenerene 757,494 766,896
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value); 1,000,000 shares authorized; 0 shares issued.....oeconirrerecerrirneens - —
Common stock ($0.01 par value); 23,000,000 shares authorized; 8,900,000 shares issued ........... 89 89
Additional paid-in Capital ......ccreireieeemiieii s 87,209 87,056
Retained earnings, substantially reStrICted ........c.oveiveriveriiericciir e e 70,370 67,215
Accumulated other comprehensive income, NEt Of taX.......ccoviiviiiiieceneesenernee s 6,973 2,044
Unearned employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) shares.......c..covivrnmenmnneennenseensenesenenns (2,551) (3,081}
Unearned stock-based compensation plan (SCP) shares .......oovvveriinrenrinennennenenersee e (298) (4086)
Treasury stock, at cost (3,753,433 shares and 3,489,677 SHAres)........c.cc.oeveeuerverereresrerrssesseressesenns (61,253) (55,977)
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY ..ocececscririiiiiiirir i sessessesecccr et ser e st assssesssessesseresaresessessaseesssssesnes 100,541 96,940
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $858,035 $863,836

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME aAND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

(Daltars in thousands, except per share amgunts) 2002 2001 2000
INTEREST INCORME
LOANS et bbbttt e e R a et nres $33,851 $32,503 $28,350
Securities:
TaXADBLE THIEETEST 111 vttt eeee et s e e er et s b e s e b et e bt et ener et reeaesaneansaanesstsrares 12,634 17,588 23,592
INONEAXADIE INEELESE 1.vvvvveesirierieeeeeeeseeeresess i e bbbttt en s s s s ss s 2,874 2,812 2,955
DIAVIAENAS 111vvivviviritirir e er e bbb s e sttt b bR r bbb b 1,264 2,849 3,328
INterest-bearing dEPOSIES ... .icuv.evereersmrrmrerereirsrriustseorssesssirsiseeeseeereessnsetstsesssssssessssenes 440 1,062 824
Total interest income 50,860 56,814 59,049
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest-bearing deposits 17,071 20,680 20,287
Borrowed funds ............... 14,139 13,174 15,979
Other..cooovrvniviiinnnnn, 35 28 30
Total interest expense 28,245 33,882 36,296
INEL INEETESE ICOME. v.vevreeureseeeerererireresecsesteteseseseesese e s seasssnssasssresase s sesssssesssesesasans 22,515 22,932 22,753
Provision fOr 10810 LOSSES ......ccomeeeeiiriiiiiriiiisiis e eteseeenernesessessnsisereseeesseeesesenens 937 1,075 630
Net interest income after provision for 10an l0SSes ....cocvviveverericiroviiriiiieninnns 21,878 21,857 22,123
NONINTEREST INCOME
SEIVICE £EE5....civiieieieirrri e bbb b e et st r e e s st b b 2,877 2,621 2,717
Net gain on sales of available for sale SECULILES......occerermmmrimriinecciinccconns 269 759 347
TWIHEAOWI Of SECUIIHIES vivivivivirersiirctiririir e s sse e soaststs s bbb babanas (164) (730) _
Net (loss) gain on held for trading securities.........cnvniininnecnnens (30) 76 101
Gain on sales of education loans held for sale .ococviecciciccccc 85 163 113
Gain on sale of branch ..., 805 - -
Earnings on bank owned life INSUFANCe ... 576 470 418
Data processing fee5 i — — 32
[ 2113 OO OO U OO PP PP 33 159 101
Total NONINEETESE IMCOMIE cvvv.vvvveveevecerorerrereseereessessesesnsereesersssssssessessessssassnnessnns 4,354 3,518 3,829
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Compensation and employee benefits. ... 8,020 9,858 9,154
OCCUPANCY 1ottt s bbb 1,592 1,847 1,554
Furniture and eqUIPMENt. ... s 1,478 1293 . 1,113
Marketing .................................................................................................................... 5286 901 670
Deposit INSUTANCE PIEIMIUINS.....vvvurirrirteressssssissssenissssesssenss s sssss s s stssssssessnsanss 92 98 101
Loss on closure of branch 208 98 —
Oher. .o e e en e e 4,258 4,974 4,763
TOtal NONINEETESE EXPEISE. e vevrrrerrererrererereasesrersrsrssesestesaseescoreseanasesrrssesssarsssrsess 17,174 19,069 17,355
Income before provision for INCOME tAXES woovvvvvrvecrciiiicsisssns s 8,855 6,306 8,597
Provision fOr INCOIME EAXES ......v..voveveeeieeeeeeeeeeeeesaerererenseseiesenecssnsseseeeeseaesseeressesennas 2,444 1,140 1,945
Net income $ 8,744 $ 5,166 $ 6,652
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Unrealized holding gains on available for sale securities, net of taX......oovuvceecnene. $ 4,905 $ 3,297 $11,376
Reclassification adjustment for net losses included in net income....oovivvoeeennn.s 24 1,355 348
QOther comprehensive INCOME woviieriiiiiirciiiccan et eescessesensennns 4,929 4,652 11,724
COMPIERENSIVE INCOMIE ... coeeecrcrere et eseesse s bbb $14,673 $ 9,818 $18,376
EARNINGS PER SHARE
i $1.35 $1.01 $1.25
$1.32 $1.00 $1.24
4,389,598 5,102,262 5,317,507
5,115,590 5,170,955 5,357,398
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Accumulated

Other
Compre- Total
Additional hensive Unearned Unearned Share-
Paid- Retained Income ESOP sCp Treasury  holders’
(Dollars in thousands, excepi.per share amounts) in Capital  Earnings (Loss) Shares Shares Stock Equity
Balance at December 31, 1999 ..o, $89  $86,722  $62,933  $(14,332)  $(4,488)  $(1,317) $(45,036) $ 84,571
NEE IMCOME vovvevvivivvenriiiiriiieiiiessesseseeinssessesssssssssnssens — — 6,652 —_ — — — 8,652
Other comprehensive income, net of tax'.........coeevnen. —_ — — 11,724 — — — 11,724
Cash dividends paid ($0.72 per share)..........cocrvcinnne, — — (3,886) — — — — (3,886)
Treasury stock purchased — — — — — — (7,865) (7,865)
Shares allocated to ESOP — 179 — —_ 708 — — 887
SCP net of tax
Stock options exercised — — — — — — — —
Stock awards granted...............oicccccnereninnennninns — (3) — — — (278) 278 3)
Stock awards forfeited ......ooovvvvinice e — — — — — 269 (269) —
Stock awards expensed ..., — — — — — 568 — 568
Balance at December 31, 2000 .......ccvivinvivveicnrinnenn, 89 86,898 65,699 (2,608) (3,780) (758) (52,892) 92,648
INEL INCOMIE 1vivieiiiiii e — — 5,166 — — — — 5,166
Other comprehensive income, net of tax'......coonvveceee. — — — 4,652 — — — 4,652
Cash dividends paid ($0.72 per share) ......c.ooevnirrenneen. — — (3,650) — — — — (3,650)
Treasury stock purchased — — — — — — (4,219) (4,219)
Shares allocated to ESOP — 355 — — 699 — — 1,054
SCP, net of tax
Stock options exercised — (181) — — — — 1,028 847
Stock awards granted.......cococreiiieeerccncceennnreceneneenes — (16) — — — (269) 285 —
Stock awards forfeited ..o — — — — — 179 (179) —
Stock awards exXpensed ....oovieieririerereriiinerieieciins — — — — — 442 — 442
Balance at December 31, 2001 ....cococoviviiincer e, 89 87,056 67,215 2,044 (3,081) (408) (55,977) 96,940
NEL INCOIME vivviiiieiiiicrr e e —_ - 8,744 - — — - 8,744
Other comprehensive income, net of tax'........ccceceeen. —_ - - 4,929 - - - 4,929
Cash dividends paid (80.72 per share) ..., - - (3,589) - - —_ - (3,589)
Treasury stock purchased —_ - —_ - - — (5,391) (5,391)
Shares allocated to ESOP - 473 - - 530 - - 1,003
SCP, net of tax
Stock options exercised - (327) - - — - 86 (241)
Stock awards granted........cccovevvciinincneneneinnn, - 7 - - — (127) 122 2
Stock awards forfeited ....ccccooovviviiiniiii e, - — - — — 23 (83) -
Stock awards expensed .....cocooiieiiviiiiiieiinn, — -_ — — — 144 —_ 144
Balance at December 31, 2002 ....ovvvvveorverreosresreiense, $89 $87,208 $70,370 $ 6,973  $(2,551) § (296) $(64,253) $100,541

1 Other comprehensive income for 2002, 2001, and 2000 is net of tax provision of $2,885, $2,672, and $6,953, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the cansolidated financial statements.
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS oF CasH Frows

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INEE LTICOTIIE ovivviiiiiii ittt cettereettsetesse st st e ebe s s e et et e rese e e et e e traneneeenansssrereeseassesaett et teetesbaaess $ 8,744 $ 5,166 $ 6,652
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision fOr 10an 10SSES........cemeeereeeeeeci sttt et en e aenen 937 1,075 630
Depreciation 937 982 752
Net loss (gain) on disposal of premises and equipment................. i8¢ (110) -
Net premium amortization (discount accretion) on securities ...... 62 810 (162)
Amortization (accretion) of net deferred loan fees........covvvrrrennnn. 223 134 (302)
Amortization of intangibles....c....cocovvrennnnn. 185 185 185
Net loss (gain) on held for trading securities....... 30 (76) (101)
Proceeds from sales of held for trading securities ... — 1,149 1,858
Purchases of held for trading securities ................... - (434) (2,555)
Net gain on sales of available for sale securities .. (269) (759) (347)
Writedown of seCUrities ....ooevvvvivrieierirseicsiee e 164 730 —
Gain on sales of education loans held for sale..... (85) (163) (113)
Net (gain) loss on sales of foreclosed assets....... (74) 74 83
Expense recognition of ESOP Shares.......ccccoovvecmmenrrnninininscnsn s ccneerscnsens 1,003 1,054 887
Expense recognition of SCP Shares ..o eneseeens 144 442 568
Deferred income tax benefit ..ottt e (689) (697) (431)
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest reCeivable ouriiiiiececninnsesenseens 173 790 (317)
Increase in bank owned life INSULANCE ...cciiiiiiiirieeer e (576) {470) (418)
Increase in prepaid expenses and Other assets........ovvemmnnccccnniiii e (404) (1,172) (988)
Net increase (decrease) in other Habilities ......ovvvvvmneimreiinicne e 1,531 1,433 (976)
Decrease in accrued interest payable. ..o ivoiiouiveeeereeeciieciess e srceresersseseeseens (509) (377) (63)
Net cash provided by operating aCtVIHES .......c.cermrirrerririiiicnie i 9,719 9,766 4,842
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales of available for sale SECUTIEIES .o e 98,163 87,564 25,088
Repayments and maturities of available for sale securities.........coonviiiniiiiivneennns 205,564 67,635 36,659
Purchases of available for sale SECUTTHES.....coviviiicviiririreiis e rsaeasaeais (272,240) (76,473) (2,473)
Maturities of held t0 MatULIty SECULIHES vvvv. e v i — 31,250 1,003
Purchases of held to maturity SECUTIHES ..oc..ovoveeereereeererresereee e — (21,145) (13,696)
Proceeds from sales of education loans held for sale ....ccooviiiivcninne. 6,446 12,385 8,631
Funding of education loans held for sale.................... (8,424) (7,595) (8,719)
Purchases of loans ....cccoevveeviiiinees (47,333) (45,442) (55,108)
Net decrease (increase) in loans e — . 19,461 (14,768) 8,462
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment ..... 8 110 —
Purchases of premises and equipment...........c..... (354) (610) (2,523)
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets ..... 592 335 303
Redemption of FHLB stock......cccocovvucrcrrnnann.... 410 3,029 —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities... 4,293 36,275 (2,373)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in noninterest and interest-bearing deposits. ... 25,446 (5,976) 21,123
Net (decrease) increase in certificates of dEPOSit....uvrmmneriircce s (34,070) 13,182 6,238
Payments from borrowed funds ..o s (228,000) (167,598) (548,728)
Proceeds on borrowed fUnds........cocoovevvveiiiinceinesesee e et eeeen 220,000 128,575 520,166
Cash dividends pajd ..................................................................................................... (3,589) (3,650) (3,886)
Net increase in advances from customers for taxes, insurance, and other ............... 486 64 378
Purchases of treasury stock ..o (5,393) (4,219) (7,865)
(Decrease) increase 1 other stock transactions ... veeiiiiiiiisresrseeersreresesrersnens (440) 710 —
Net cash used in fiNANCINEG ACHVILES...........oiviiveeeeeeeeeeeieieiereereeee e srceneeeeeererens (22,528) (38,912) (12,574)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ...veeeeveercrrrviiiess i crreeene (8,516) 7,129 (10,105)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of VEar........oooooeeeeeeeiieicioroieiecscseeeeeenes 29,859 22,730 32,835
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.......coocoooiiivirore $ 21,343 $ 29,859 $ 22,730

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consclidated financial statements.
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NortEes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies followed by GA Financial, Inc. and

its subsidiaries (the “Company”) are as follows:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of GA Financial, Inc. and its subsidiaries, Great American
Federal (the “Bank”) and New Eagle Capital, Inc., and the Bank’s wholly
owned subsidiaries, GA Financial Strategies, LLC, Steel City Investments,
Inc., and Great American Financial Services, Inc. Intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could

differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and amounts due from banks, including interest-

bearing deposits.

Securilies

Securities classified as available for sale include investments that
management intends to use as part of its asset/lability management
strategy, and that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates,
resultant prepayment risk, or other factors. Unrealized holding gains and
losses, net of tax, on available for sale securities are reported as
accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, in a separate
component of shareholders’ equity until realized. Declines in the fair
value of individual available for sale and held to maturity securities below
their cost, that are deemed other than temporary, will result in write-
downs of the individual securities to their fair value. Any related write-
downs will be included in earnings as realized losses. Realized gains and
losses on the sale of securities are recognized using the specific
identification method and are included in noninterest income in the
“Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income”
Premiums and discounts on securities are recognized in interest income

using the interest method over the period to maturity or call date,

Assets purchased with the intention of recognizing short-term profits
are considered trading securities and are carried at fair value. Gains and
losses are included in noninterest income. Interest on trading securities is
recorded as interest income.

Securities are classified as held to maturity when management has the
positive intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity. Securities

held to maturity are carried at amortized cost.

Loans

Interest income is recognized on a level yield basis. Loan origination
fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized
over the contractual life of the related loan as a yield adjustment using the
interest method. Discounts and premiums on purchased loans are
amortized to income using the interest method over the remaining period
to contractural maturity, adjusting for prepayments. The accrual of interest
is discontinued, when in management’s judgment, it is determined that the
collectibility of interest, but not necessarily principal, is doubtful. An
interest accrual is normally discontinued when a loan becomes delinquent
90 days or more past due. Interest receipts on such nonaccrual loans are
first applied to principal. A nonaccrual loan is not returned to accruing
status until all amounts due, both principal and interest, are current and a
sustained payment history has been demonstrated. Loans held for sale are

education loans, which are recorded at cost.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is based on management’s evaluation of
losses in the current loan portfolio, which includes an assessment of
economic conditions, changes in the nature of the loan portfolio, loan
loss experience, and other relevant factors. While management uses the
best information available to make such evaluations, future adjustments to
the allowance may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the
assumptions used in making the evaluations. Additions are made to the
allowance through periodic provisions charged to income and recovery of
principal and interest on loans previously charged-off. Losses of principal
are charged directly to the allowance when a loss actually occurs or when
a determination is made that a specific loss is probable.

The Company follows the provisions of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan” and SFAS
No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income
Recognition and Disclosures” an amendment of SFAS No. 114. SFAS
No. 114 addresses the accounting by creditors for impairment of loans by
specifying how reserves for credit losses related to certain loans should

be measured.
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Nortes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Within the context of SFAS No. 114, a loan is considered to be
impaired when, based upon current information and events, it is probable
that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due for principal
and interest according to the original contractual terms of the loan
agreement. Impairment is measured based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at a loan’s effective interest rate, or
as a practical expedient, the observable market price or, if the loan is
collateral dependent, the fair value of the underlying collateral. When the
measurement of an impaired loan is less than the recorded investment in
the loan, the impairment is recorded as a specific valuation allowance and
could result in a charge to the provision for loan losses. This specific
valuation allowance is periodically adjusted for significant changes in the
amount or timing of expected future cash flows, observable market price,
or fair value of the collateral. The specific valuation allowance, or
allowance for impaired loan losses, is part of the total allowance for loan
losses. Cash payments received on impaired loans are recorded as a direct
reduction of the recorded investment in the loan. When the recorded
investment has been fully collected, receipts are recorded as recoveries to
the allowance for loan losses until the previously charged-off principal 1s
fully recovered. Subsequent amounts collected are recognized as interest
income. Impaired loans are not returned to accrual status until all
amounts due, both principal and interest, are current and a sustained
payment history has been demonstrated. At December 31, 2002, 2001,
and 2000, the Company did not have any recorded investment in loans
for which impairment has been recognized in accordance with SFAS No.
114 and SFAS No. 118. Since the Company had no loans considered
impaired under SFAS No. 114 during the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001, or 2000, there was no interest income recognized or related
allowance on impaired loans during the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, or 2000.

Generally, management considers all nonaccrual loans and certain
renegotiated debt, when it exists, for impairment. The maximum period
without payment that typically can occur before a loan is considered for
impairment is 90 days. SFAS No. 114 does not apply to large groups of
smaller balance homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for
impairment. Generally, the Company collectively reviews for impairment
smaller balance homogeneous loans (i.e. primarily residential mortgages

and consumer loans).

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method based
on the estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated useful lives range from

20 to 50 years for office buildings, ten years for land improvements, and

three to five years for equipment. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. Expenditures for renovations and major improvements

are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Foreclosed Assels

Foreclosed assets consist of property acquired in settlement of real
estate loan indebtedness. Such assets are carried at the lower of cost or
fair value less estimated costs to sell. Net costs to maintain the foreclosed
assets and subsequent gains and losses attributable to their disposal are

included in other expense.

Intangible Assels

Premiums paid for branch depasits are allocated to core deposit
intangibles and are recorded in other assets. Core deposit intangibles are
amortized on a straight-line basis over seven years. Management
periodically evaluates the carrying value and remaining amortization
period of intangible assets for possible impairment. Adjustments will be
recorded when the purchased deposits decay at an accelerated rate as

compared to the amortization period.

Income Taxes

The Company joins with its wholly owned subsidiaries in filing a
consolidated federal income tax return.

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability
method. The objective of the asset and lability method is to establish
deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences between the
financial reporting and tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities
based on enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts
are realized or settled.

In tax years prior to fiscal year 1997, the Company was permitted,
under the Internal Revenue Code, to deduct an annual addition to a
reserve for bad debts in determining taxable income, subject to certain
limitations. Bad debt deductions for income tax purposes are included in
taxable income of later years only if the bad debt reserve is used
subsequently for purposes other than to absorb bad debt losses. Tax basis
bad debt reserves established after 1987 are treated as temporary
differences on which deferred income taxes have been provided. Deferred
income taxes are not required to be provided on tax bad debt reserves
recorded in 1987 and prior years. Retained earnings as of December 31,
2002 includes approximately $13.3 million representing such bad debt

deductions for which no deferred income taxes have been provided.

GAFI1nNaNClAaL, INC. @ﬁ]AA\'NUAL REPORT 2002



NotEes To THE CONSOLIDATED FFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting For Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB
257) and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based

compensation plan. Because the Company accounts for this stock option

Year Ended December 31,
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

plan using APB 25, no compensation expense has been recorded in the
financial statements for this plan. Had compensation cost for this stock
option plan been determined based on the fair value at the grant date
consistent with the method of SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation,” the Company’s net income and earnings per share

would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2002 2001 2000

Net income
Expense related to options granted, net of tax
Net income

As reported
Pro forma
Pro forma

$5,166 $6,652
(245) (149) (88)
8,499 5,017 6,564

Basic earnings per share
Pro forma

As reported

$4.35 $1.01 $1.25
0.98 1.23

Diluted earnings per share

Pro forma

As reported

$1.00 $1.24
0.97 1.23

The Black-Scholes valuation model was developed for use in estimating
the fair value of traded options which have no vesting restrictions and are
fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.

Year Ended December 31,

The fair value for the options described above was estimated at the
date of the grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model based on

the following weighted average assumptions:

RUSK-ree IMLETESE TALE ...t ceviirireeenieir ettt e
Dividend yield .....ccovevieniiiie e
Volatility of expected market price of common stock ...,
Average life of OPHONS (VEAS) ..o vcvrvvvcoriiniriiiinieisniers o ceseessens

2002 2001 2000
..................................................... 4.04% 4.82% 6.98%
...................................................... 4.21% 4.50% 5.00%
...................................................... 28.40% 29.60% 32.20%
...................................................... 8.0 6.0 8.0

Treasury Stock

The purchase of the Company’s stock is recorded at cost. If reissuance
occurs, the treasury stock account will be reduced by the cost of such
stock using the average cost method, with any difference in proceeds

being debited or credited to additional paid-in capital.

Rectassifications

For comparative purposes, reclassifications have been made to certain
amounts previously reported to conform with the current period

presentation in the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2. SUBSIDIARY/SEGMENT REPORTING

The consolidated operating results of GA Financial, Inc. are presented
as a single financial services segment. GA Financial, Inc. is the parent
company of Great American Federal, a community bank and the
Company’s principal subsidiary, New Eagle Capital, Inc. an investrent
company, and the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries, GA Financial
Strategies, LLC, established in 2001 to provide wealth management
services, Steel City Investments, Inc., established in December 2002 to
hold and manage investment securities, and Great American Financial
Services, Inc., currently inactive. GA Financial, Inc., New Eagle Capital,
Inc., and the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiary Steel City Investments, Inc.
are incorporated in the state of Delaware. Great American Federal, is a
federally chartered savings and loan institution while its wholly owned
subsidiaries, GA Financial Strategies, LLC, and Great American Financial

Services, [nc. are incorporated in the state of Pennsylvania.
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Following is a table of selected financial data for the Company’s subsidiaries, parent company, and consolidated results:

Great
American New Eagle GA Financial, Inc. Net

(Dollars in thousands) Federal Capital, inc. (Parent Company) Eliminations Gonsolidated
2002

ASSEES v $842,594 $ 43,438 $129,297 $(157,292) $858,035
Liabilities......ovoveiiecrciiiiieceerinen e cenins 757,256 1,769 28,756 (36,287) 757,484
Shareholders’ equity 85,338 41,6687 100,541 (127,005) 100,541
INEELESE INCOMIE ...ovvviiviiviev e $ 50,270 $ 1,737 $ 314 $ (1,461) $ 50,860
[nterest eXpense ......oovenvvecvcvememrernenenceneenens 28,558 —_ 1,148 (1,461) 28,245
Provision for loan losses 837 -_ — - 937
Noninterest INCOME ........ovvverveerrireesnserererens 4,618 (300) 33 —_ 4,354
NORINLETESt EXPENSE .....vvvivirirerrirricicrceesisenns 16,589 84 521 — 17,174
Provision (benefit) for income taxes.............. 2,092 482 (443) - 2,141
Net income (1088) .evereereririreerieineneriereceeceen, 6,712 941 (879) - 6,744
2001

ASSEES v s $851,250 $ 33,601 $118,823 $(139,838) $863,836
Liabilities...occoiiicc s, 766,801 1,097 21,883 (22,885) 766,896
Shareholders’ equity .........cccoervemmrcnernniivnnni, 84,449 32,504 96,940 (116,953) 96,940
THEELEST IOCOMIE oo oo $ 56,058 $ 2,028 $ 399 $ (1,671) $ 56,814
[nterest eXPense ......ooovvvvvrcerrinreernieecerernennees 34,258 — 1,295 (1,671) 33,882
Provision for loan 1083es...c.cuvrvvvivviiiisienens 1,075 — — — 1,075
Noninterest income 3,304 182 32 — 3,518
Noninterest expense 18,350 47 672 - 19,069
Provision (benefit) for income taxes............. 945 735 (540) — 1,140
Net income (lo8s)..cereeeerereinnriinieieieiennn, 4,734 1,428 (996) — 5,166
2000

ASSELS oottt $872,400 $ 29,509 $107,146 $(119,886) $889,169
Liabilities .....oovvev v, 796,506 364 14,498 (14,847) 796,521
Shareholders’ equity ......cccocvrivrrecrerreerrenrnn, 75,894 29,145 92,648 (105,039) 92,648
Interest INCOME ...oevovviirrcrrinrriniinreecessnnn: $ 57,892 $ 1,980 $ 478 $ (1,301) $ 59,049
[nterest eXPense. ..o 36,733 — 864 (1,301) 36,296
Provision for loan losses.....cooiiroiiiiiiiiiennnn. 630 — — — 630
Noninterest income 3,289 439 101 — 3,829
Noninterest expense 16,711 20 624 - 17,355
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .............. 1,440 782 (277) — 1,945
Net income (loss)..........ccveeemmmrrrnrrninrvrnrnnns 5,667 1,617 (632) — 6,652

NOTE 3. SECURITIES

At December 31, 2002, and 2001, there were $992,000 and
$3.5 million, respectively, of securities sold which did not settle until

2003 and 2002, respectively, and accordingly, have been reflected as

GAFI~NxaNcCci1aL, INC.

“securities sold, not settled,” in the accompanying “Consolidated

Statements of Financial Condition.”
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of available for sale and held to maturity securities are as follows:

December 31,
{Dollars in thousands)

2002

Amortized Gross Gross
Cost Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Yalue
Available for Sale Securities:
U.S. government and agency debt .......ovvveceererreenmmconeinnrcininincens $ 47,088 $ 1,395 $§ - $ 48,483
Mortgage-backed securities.....ovnnnne. 161,857 5,084 - 166,741
Collateralized mortgage obligations.... 8,638 495 — 9,133
Municipal obligations ............c.ouvinnene. 55,167 1,086 _ 56,253
Corporate debt 0bligations ..o 20,587 390 - 20,977
Marketable eqUItY SECUTTHES ...vvvvveeerrer v eeeeessersnisss e eeeeesneenes 9,991 2,793 (175) 12,609
Total available for sale securities $303,128 $ 11,243 $ (178) $314,196
Held to Maturity Securities:
Corporate debt obligations .......cccooevverveiineinccinceneiieoneeee e, $ 2,951 $ 206 $ - $ 3,457
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2001
Amortized Gross Gross
Cost Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value
Avatlable for Sale Securities:
U.S. government and agency debt ..o $ 5,017 $ 61 $  (15) $ 5,063
Mortgage-backed SECUTIHES........couviimiveciriieniiiecn e, 139,637 1,090 (86) 140,641
Collateralized mortgage obligations.........cccreveereerrinneensennerecrecnens 48,803 962 (41) 49,724
Municipal ObHgations ..o 58,807 196 (1,288) 57,715
Corporate debt obligations ...... 51,058 314 (46) 51,326
Marketable equity securities............. 28,809 2,775 (670) 30,914
Total available for sale SECUTIHES ......vvvviereeeceirrcsrrcs s er i $332,131 $5,398 $(2,146) $335,383
Held to Maturity Securities:
Corporate debt ObIGAtIONS ...vvvverersiviivniiciiiecercr i $ 2,914 $ 224 $  — $ 3,138

Expected maturites will differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to call or to prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties. The weighted average yields are

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the
amortized cost, fair value, weighted average yield, and contractual
maturities of the Company’s available for sale and held to maturity

based on amortized cost and are on debt securities only; marketable securities:
securities are excluded.
December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2002
Due After Due After
Due in One Year Five Years Total Total Weighied
One Year Through Through Due After Amorifized Fair Average
or Less Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Cosi Value Yield
Available for Sale Securities:
U.S. government and agency debt.......c.covvviiiinecnce $ 1619 $43882 $§ 665 $ 1,122 $ 47,088  § 48,483 4.39%
Mortgage-backed SECUTIHES ........cocvvrmmniriinnenirienns 2 — 39,008 122,647 161,857 166,741 5.76
Collateralized mortgage obligations ......cccovnciiiinnes - - 4,312 4,326 8,838 9,133 8.13
Municipal obLgations ... 854 3,292 8,239 44,782 55,167 56,253 8.74
Corporate debt obHgations .......c.couvniiivieseernenrenns 15,230 5,062 235 - 20,587 20,977 311
Total securities dUe ....civiiviiiieiiieeeniiniiseisree e $ 17,785 $ 52,036 $ 50,459 $172,877 $293,137 $301,587 5.55%
Marketable equity securities......oococovervrivvvcriiinnnes.. 9,991 12,609
Total available for sale securities.......couveenricranans $303,128  $314,196
Held to Maturity Securities:
Corporate debt obligations........ccuveveerivcneriiieecnns $ —  $ 291 § — $ ~ $ 2851 $ 3,187 7.43%

1 The weighted average yield for municipal obligations is on a taxable equivalent basis.
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Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities for the year ended
December 31, 2002 were approximately $98.2 million. Gross gains of
approximately $918,000 and gross losses of approximately $813,000,
including a $164,000 writedown of securities, were realized for the year ended
December 31, 2002. Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities for
the year ended December 31, 2001 were approximately $87.6 million.

NOTE 4. LOANS

Loans consist of the following:

December 31,

Gross gains of approximately $1.3 million and gross losses of approximately
$1.2 million, including a 730,000 writedown of securities, were realized for
the year ended December 31, 2001. Proceeds from sales of available for
sale securities for the year ended December 31, 2000 were approximately
$25.1 million. Gross gains of approximately $531,000 and gross losses of
approximately $184,000 were realized for the year ended December 31, 2000.

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Loan Balances:
Mortgage Loans:
RESTAEIITIAL 1ottt s b s st bbbt st b et e b b e ren $2418,905 $259,154 $276,611 $255,993 $239,648
Multi-famﬂy ........................................................................................................ 10,629 9,782 5,575 4,405 5,293
Commercial real estate 100,376 63,769 23,495 17,592 7,329
Commercial and residential construction and development, net' 29,506 25,500 11,813 753 1,021
Total mortgage LOAMS 1ottt e b 359,418 358,205 317,494 278,743 253,291
Consumer Loans:
HOME EQUILY ..ot bbb s 74,959 62,249 54,458 50,872 53,514
Unsecured PErsonal ... e sessss s s 2,893 2,775 2,489 2,109 2,117
Loans on deposit 2CCOUNLS «...viririrrrires s 940 1,322 1,521 1,725 2,003
AULOMODBIIE 1ottt ettt aen s e 212 174 — — —
Total consUMEr 10aNS...cciiicice e e 79,404 66,520 58,468 54,706 57,834
Commercial Business Loans:
Secured DUSINESS.......occviciiiiieiieseee s cber bt csb e e ateaan 23,240 14,852 6,431 2,758 2,251
Unsecured business....cocovvvrvrviinneee 7,620 3,029 813 37 84
Total commercial business 10aNs .....oceveviemniiiie i 30,850 17,881 7,244 2,795 2,335
Education 10ans held for 5ale .o 14,795 14,732 19,359 19,158 20,040
Deferred fees.....oovvvvmvsnnnnnn. (107) (330) (464) (162) (968)
Total loans 484,088 457,008 402,101 355,240 332,332
Less:
Allowance for 10an 10565 .....c..cooviviviiiiiiiieneenee v v (3,898) (3,210) (2,268) (1,731) (1,804)
INEE LOMS 1. vvvivivi ettt cttee e e e st b st et sb s b anebs st st eresensensbenssearereseresean $480,172 $453,798 $399,833 $353,509 $330,728
1 Amounts for 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999, and 1998 are net of loans in-process of $21.6 million, $19.0 million, $13.6 million, $2.9 millian, and $1.4 million, respectively.
The following table sets forth the remaining contractual loan maturities:
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002
Due Aiter
Due in One One Year Through Due After Total
Year or Less Five Years Five Years Loans
Remaining Contractual Loan Maturities:
Mortgage Loans:
ReSIAEntial .. .o.oiiiiiccteresse e st er bbb $ 78 $ 1,802 $217,025 $218,905
Multi-family and commercial real estate ......coovuermvnnvecnenn: 1,291 15,539 94,175 111,005
Commercial and residential construction and development 30,006 2,399 18,689 51,074
Total MOTLEAZE 10aNS....evcvicrieciiic s 31,375 19,740 329,889 380,984
Consumer 10ans.......cooeeeeninn, 24,861 16,675 37,568 79,104
Commercial business loans 17,385 1,411 12,064 30,3560
SUD-LOTAL JOAIS 1.ovveitrie e ce e eese st er e e s e s sesnenbens e as $ 73,821 $ 37,828 $379,501 $490,948
Education loans held for sale. 14,795
Total 10ans ...ccoveeerieiniinae 505,743
Less:
LOans IN=PROCESS ..cvvimniiiiiiirics s ssssaes s st s neaeneas (21,568)
DIEfEITEA FES ....vvvioeeeioeteeeeveereeseerer s vt s et saess s n e nsrnieers (107)
TOtAl 10A0S ... iviiviieii e e s $4384,068
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The following table sets forth, at December 31, 2002, the loans contractually due after December 31, 2003, and whether such loans have fixed or

adjustable interest rates:

December 31,

(Doliars in thousands) 2003
Fixed Adjustable Toial
Loans Contractually Dye:
Mortgage Loans:
RESIACIITIAL .1 vttt e e bbb bbbt b e et b b $166,722 $ 52,105 $218,827
Multi-family and commercial real €state ..o 45,298 64,416 109,714
Commercial and residential construction and development........c.....cocovovicivenninnnnnn. 4,948 16,120 21,088
Total MOTtZAE [0ANS ... .cevriimiiiiiiiciirerr s 218,968 132,641 349,609
CONSUIMET JOATIS 1vovvrieretrteeraeirietee ettt esviesesrtssseersetsssaestrassssesesscasssostesetesessasssessssnsasinsatesass 54,243 —_— 54,243
Commercial DUSINESS LOAIS ...o.iiviiiir ittt it erte et svssearen s eisanaaeraesens 9,276 4,499 13,475
TOLAL JOATIS 1.ttt et e ettt sre e $280,487 $136,840 $447,327

The Company purchased approximately $47.3 million and $45.4 million,
in 2002 and 2001, respectively, of residential loans collateralized by single-
family properties located inside and outside its primary market area, such as
other regions of Pennsylvaniaand other states not serviced by the Company.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has transactions,

December 31,

including loans, with the Company’s principal officers and directors and

their related interests. Related party loans outstanding were approximately

$1.1 million and $982,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The following table sets forth the information regarding

nonperforming loans, foreclosed assets, and nonperforniing assets:

(Dollars in ihousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Nonperforming Loans, Foreclosed Assets, and Nonpesforming Assets:
Mortgage Loans:
Residential ..... $ 878 $ 783 $ 636 $ 856 $ 462
Multi-family - — — - -
Comumercial 1eal et ... e — 18 - — —
Commercial and residential construction and development.....coovvriioinee. — — — — —
Total MOTtEage 10ANS ..o 876 801 636 856 462
Consumer Loans:
HOME @QUILY ..ottt s 879 638 558 584 574
Unsecured personal ... s 3 4 25 23 21
Loans on deposit ACCOUILS 1.t ssssesssssssasss - — — — —
AULOTIODBIIE .o s — — — — —
Total CONSUMET JOANS..c.ocvmeiveeeiicectrcesces it sbe sttt 582 642 583 807 595
Commercial Business Loans:
Secured BUSINESs....iv v - 50 — — —
UNSECUTEA DUSINESS 11t cenmeie e ecsmneraceseeste et ceeensenrseraneeses — 25 — — —
Total commercial business loans - 75 - - -
Education loans held for 5ale ... 12 — 1 13 59
Total nonperforming loans........ccuverienciini e, 1,470 1,518 1,220 1,476 1,116
FOTECIOSEA ASSELS ... vrvecvieerrnie ettt 34 154 154 345 - 758
Total NONPEHfOTMING ASSELS ..v.vvivvvrvitriiri e $ 1504 $ 1672 $ 1374 $ 1821 $ 1874
Nonperforming 10ans t0 total 10an8 .....c.ovviinnn s 0.30% 0.33% 0.30% 0.42% 0.34%
Nonperforming assets £0 aSSEIS......uvuwmimrimisiise s e, 0.18 0.19 0.45 0.21 0.23
Allowance for loan 10sses to total 10ans. ... 0.80 0.70 0.56 0.49 0.48
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming assets 259.04 191.99 165.07 95.06 85.59
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The following is a summary of activity in the allowance for loan losses:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balance at beginning of YEar. ... $3,210 $2,268 $1,731 $1,604 $1,322
Charge-offs:
Mortgage loans:
Residential.......oocvviiceiiiccces e (1) — (40) (19) (5)
Multi-family - - — — -
Commercial real eSEALE..........cv vt -— — — — —
Commercial and residential construction and development ................ — — — —
Total MOrtgage loans. ..o vcevcermrnmneeniieneeecninreccrsssnersssessenes (1) — (40) (19) (3)
Consumer loans:
HOIME @QUILY 1.vvvveevvvvsveeesecoveeeeessssseeeseessesereessesooeessssssssee e sssnes (40) 92) 9) (164) (44)
Unsecured personal..........ooincccnen s (95) (53) (60) (15) (30)
Loans on deposit accounts - — — — -
ANtOmnObIE. ... e — — — — —
Total CONSUMET 10AMNS .....cvcviveeeeeecreree e rerererarns (135} (145) (69) (179) (74)
Commercial business loans:
SECUTE DUSIIESS 1.vvvvvii ettt b r s erebererans (113) — — — —
Unsecured business ..........c.oce....... (34) — — — —
Total commercial business loans (147) — — — —
Education loans held for sale ... eerenns - 3) (2) (71) (37)
Total charge—oﬁ:s .............................................................................................. (283) (148) (111) (269) (116)
RECOVETIES w.vvvvriiiriiiriric ittt ee e ettt b bt n st eneens 32 15 18 6 38
INEt charge-0ffs. ..o e (251) (133) (93) (263) (78)
Provision for 10an 10SSEs ..........ccc.cviiieiieeceeeeee et et en s 937 1,075 630 390 360
Balance at end of year ... $3,896 $3,210 $2,268 $1,731 $1,604
Ratio of net charge-offs to average loans outstanding .........ccccccoueecrnriinrirsnnrnnn. 0.05% 0.03% 0.03% 0.08% 0.02%
The following table sets forth the allowance for loan losses by categories listed and the percent of total loans:

December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
of Tofal of Tofal of Total of Total of Total

Balance  Loans Balance Loans Balance Loans Balance Loans Balance Loans
Allowance for Loan Losses by Categories/Percent:
Mortgage Loans:
Reesidential oo e $ 844 4520% $ 897 5664% $1,079 6868% $ 773 72.02% $ 933 71.82%
Multi-family ................................................ 213 249 196 2.14 111 1.39 87 1.24 54 1.59
Commercial real estate........ccocovovvverereiernnes 2,047 20.74 1,278 13.95 470 5.84 348 4.95 73 2.21
Commercial and residential
construction and development.................. 295  8.10 255  5.58 118  2.94 7 021 10  0.31
Total mortgage 10anS ..o 3,199 74.23 2,626 7831 1,778 78.85 1,216 78.42 1,070 75.83

Consumer 10ans ... weieiiieiereie s 537 16.34 484 1456 454  14.54 501 15.40 522 17.34

Commercial business loans ... 180  8.37 100 391 36 1.80 14 0.79 12 070

Education loans held for sale — 3.6 — 322 — 481 — 539 —  6.03

Total allowance for loan losses............ov... $3,896 100.00%  $3,210 100.00% $2,268 100.00% $1,731 100.00% $1,604 100.00%
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NOTE 5. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT The Company recognized depreciation of approximately $937,000,
$982,000, and $752,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001,

Premises and equipment consist of the following: and 2000, respectively.

The Company has operating leases relating to premises and equipment

December 31,

(Dallars in thousands) 2001 which expire on various dates. Annual lease expenses were §745,000,

$456,000, and $421,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001,

and 2000. Approximate future minimum annual lease commitments are

Premises and Equipment:
$ 1,142
Land improvements 458 as follows:
Office buildings 9,786
Equipment 10,801
Total premises and equipment............... 22,187
Accumulated depreciation (15,118)

$ 7,069

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) Amount

Total premises and equipment, net

The Company owns the building and land for its administrative office 2007 weereereereeaesateet ettt er bt s s e anin ettt 259

and eight of its community offices, and leases the remaining four.

NOTE 6. DEPOSITS

Noninterest-bearing and interest-bearing deposits are summarized as follows:

December 31,

{Dallars in thousands) 2002 2001
Weighied Percent of Weighted Pereent of
Average Total Average Toial
Cost Balance Balance Cost Balance Balance
Noninterest-bearing deposits .........c.coovviveercccererennns $ 30,701 5.86% $ 31,671 5.98%
Interest-bearing Deposits:
Non-certificate deposits:
Checking accounts...........coevemeniniinicecceccennenn: 0.50% 39,691 7.57 0.90% 39,602 7.48
Money market deposit accounts 2.31 69,546 13.27 2.35 65,416 12.35
Savings aCCOUMS...covvverrvrrricrnns 2,15 149,229 28.48 2.41 127,032 23.98
Total non-certificate deposits 289,167 55.18 263,721 49.79
Certificates of Deposit:
0% 10 3.99% vevrrcri 2.60 98,135 18.34 2.99 62,932 11.88
4.00% t0 4.99% ..ocviiiiiii 4.439 39,024 7.45 4.37 45,634 8.61
5.00% t0 5.99% .0vciiiiic 5.23 35,427 8.76 5.40 35,281 6.66
6.00% and above .. 8.64 64,314 12.27 6.68 122,123 23.06
Total certificates of deposit..........cccrerrvrreans 4.40% $234,900 44.82% 5.24% $265,970 50.21%
Total interest-bearing deposits ........ov.vvvivvveeeeereereanens 493,366 94.14 498,020 94.02
Total deposits ................................................................. $524,087 100.00% $529,691 100.00%
The aggregate amount of certificates of deposit with a minimum December 31,
denomination of $100,000 was $19.5 million at December 31, 2002, (Doliars in thousands) 2002
Deposits in excess of $100,000 are not federally insured. At December 31, Certificates of Deposit;
. Three months or 1ess ... $ 4,105
2002 the Bank had certficates of deposit in amounts of §100,000 or more Over 3 through 6 MONtAS ...ccoccereerrerreosoreossosoee 3,761
maturing as follows: Over 6 through 12 months ... 1,485
QVer 12 MONRS..oioviiviicci e 10,163
Total certificates of deposit........ocoorveereereencerenrecrnnnnenns $19,494
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The following tables present, by various rate categories, the amount and year of maturity of the certificates of deposit cutstanding at December 31,

2002 and 2001:

December 31, 2002
(Doflars in thousands)

Year of Maturity

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafler Total
Certificates of Depostt/Actual Interest Rates:
0% £0 3.99%...vvccorrrreesreemmmsmressessssseseseseesessssese e $ 57,539  $27,182  $ 9,325  $ 1,028  $ 1,012 $ 68 § 96135
4.00% to 4.99%...... 11,254 6,559 1,889 5,244 13,597 414 39,024
5.00% to 5.99%...... 7,248 587 312 12,160 14,881 239 35,427
6.00% and above 27,551 3,717 29,227 3,374 15 430 64,314
Total certificates of deposit.......cocvcvviviiiiiniicinnns $103,592 $38,025 $40,853 $21,774 $29,505 $1,1514  $234,900
December 31, 2001
(Dollars in thousands) Year of Maturity
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereatter Total
Certificates of Deposit/Actual Interest Rates:
0% 10 3.99% ..o $ 48,748 $10,775 $ 3,409 $ — $ — $ — $ 62,932
4.00% to 4.9%%...... 21,385 11,883 6,947 2,065 3,344 — 45,634
5.00% to 5.99%...... 13,570 7,682 580 438 12,922 89 35,281
6.00% and above 56,864 28,103 3,819 29,473 3,363 501 122,123
Total certificates of deposit........ccccconiiiiniciciiinins $140,577 $58,443 $14,755 $31,976 $19,629 $ 590 $265,970
Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Deposits:
Interest-bearing checking aCCOUNLS ... s $ 227 $ 419 $ 593
Money market deposit accounts........ 1,545 2,457 3,443
Savings accounts ......ocveeeerieiiniiens 3,260 2,961 3,269
Certificates Of EPOSI. .o iciiinrierciiiiiiie et reet ettt 12,039 14,843 12,982
TOta] dEPOSILS ... evcveieiie et $17,074 $20,680 $20,287
NOTE 7. BORROWED FUNDS December 31, Weighted
(Dotlars in thousands) 2001 Average Cost
The Bank is a2 member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) FHLB Advances:
system. As a member, the Bank is required to maintain an investment in 5.31%
the capital stock of the FHLB, which is carried at cost. The required 5 2_8
investment is primarily based on 5% of outstanding advances and a '__
percentage of the unused borrowing capacity. The Bank can take short- _
term and long-term advances with the FHLB. 2007 and thereafter ... 174,575 5.17
FHLB advances by year of maturity at December 31, 2002 and 2001 Total FHLB advances ............cc....... $229,575 5.20%

are summarized as follows:

December 31, Weighted
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 Average Cost
FHLB Advances:
2003 . s $ 30,000 1.78%
2004, 17,000 5.28
2008 and thereafter..........ccoevcvrnrnnnnnn. 174,575 517
Total FHLB advances ........cccueveeee. $221,575 4.72%

FHLB “convertible select” advances are long-term borrowings with
terms of up to ten years, and which have a fixed rate for the first three
months to five years of the term. After the fixed rate term expires, and
quarterly thereafter, the FHLB may convert the advance to an adjustable-rate
advance at their option. If the advance is converted to an adjustable-rate
advance, the Bank has the option at the conversion date or on any future
quarterly rate reset date, to prepay the advance with no prepayment fee.
The Bank had $174.6 million of convertible select advances at December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Advances from the FHLB are collateralized entirely by qualifying
securities and loans, totaling $454.4 million at December 31, 2002. These
advances are subject to restrictions or penalties related to prepayments.
The Bank’s maximum borrowing capacity with the FHLB was $409.7
million at December 31, 2002.

Average outstanding short-term FHLB advances for 2002, 2001, and
2000 were $31.1 million, $43.8 million, and $90.1 million and the related
weighted average costs were 3.46%, 5.51%, and 6.28%, respectively.

The maximum amount of short-term FHLB advances outstanding
at any month-end during 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $38.0 mullion,
$47.0 million, and $107.7 million, respectively.

The Company had no securities sold under agreement to repurchase

NOTE 8. INCOME TAXES

for the years ended December 31, 2002, and 2001.

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase at December 31, 2000
were $51.1 million with a weighted average cost of 6.52%.

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase were collateralized by
mortgage-backed and related securities with an amortized cost of $52.7
million and fair value of $52.0 million at December 31, 2000. The
securities were held in safekeeping at the FHLB. The $51.1 million of
securities sold under agreement to repurchase was comprised of three
commitments which all matured within 30 to 90 days. The average
balance and weighted average cost for 2000 was $35.6 million and 6.55%,
respectively. The maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during
2000 was $69.0 million.

Income tax expense (benefit) applicable to income before taxes consists of:

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

2002

Federal Provision:

(@31 & < oL PR SOR $ 2,245 $ 1,397 $ 1,861
DIELEITEA ..ottt ettt er et sttt s tebs et e b es e et e te e snsbenesesrenesessens {889) (697) (431)
Total federal.......coiiiiiiiieee ettt 1,558 700 1,430
State Provision:
CUITEIE veotiits e veetveseveteieeeeneeanseeaseaeesseerrasenseeservaeesseesseesstessssessssssstsetssnessereseesssears 555 440 515
Total provision for IMCOME TAXES ..ocorveeirriiieeriieeeer st $ 2111 $ 1,140 $ 1945
In addition to amounts applicable to income before taxes, the following income tax expense (benefit) amounts were recorded in
shareholders’ equity:
Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale ..........ccoooiniiecnnnicionnee e $ 2,885 $ 2,672 $ 6,953
Compensation expense for tax in excess of
financial SEAtEMENTt AMOUBE c.oviiiiii ittt sttt e et bbb ers s essssesannin (158) (138) —
A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate to the tax rate applicable to income before federal income taxes is as follows:
Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000
Tax Rate:
Federal STatntory FAte ..o 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit...........cccovviieiiicircnir s 4.1 4.6 4.0
Tax exempt INCOME, MEL ... s (10.5) (14.7) (11.5)
Low income housing tax credits.......oovicmmeonininccnmeiiimseesssenenes (4.7) (6.7) 4.7)
OMBET oottt sttt e eneeeeee e eeeaentsanessstcssensannsennnesenesaneesreenneenn 0.9 0.8 0.8
TOtAL £AX TALE 11vvvieiisee ettt ettt e sttt sttt r et ettt e 23.8% 18.1% 22.6%
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The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recorded on the “Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition” are as follows:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Deferred Tax: Assets/Liabilities:
Tax bad debt reserve ... $§ — $ 128 $ — $ 255
Allowance for 10an Josses.............oovvnvecnersencceenenen. 1,325 - 1,091 —
Loan origination fees/costs..... 54 - 2 —
Depreciation/amortization..... — 327 - 359
Net unrealized holding gains/losses
on securities available for sale ........ccooveveveeeiececeennnn. - 4,094 — 1,209
(1473 S PEUTTO 668 — 424 —
Total deferred tax assets/liabilities .....cceveevrvrsirvrnnnn, $2,047 $4,549 $1,517 $1,823

Net accumulated deferred income tax liabilities at December 31, 2002
and 2001 were $2.5 million and $306,000, respectively.

The Company determined that it was not required to establish a
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets because it is management’s
assertion that the deferred tax assets are likely to be realized through
carrybacks to taxable income in prior years, future reversals of existing

taxable temporary differences, and, to a lesser extent, future taxable income.

NOTE 9. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH
OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company had no derivative instrument exposure as of December
31, 2002, 2001, or 2000.

NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Currently, the Company offers a 401(k) program, for ali eligible
employees, permiitting participants to defer a maximum of 20% of their
base salary with the Company contributing a 50% match on the first 6% of
the employee’s deferred salary. Compensation expense relating to the 401(k)
match was $131,000 for 2002, $135,000 for 2001, and $125,000 for 2000.

The Company has established, for all eligible employees who have
attained the age of 21, an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”).
The ESOP borrowed an aggregate of §7.1 million from the Company
and purchased 712,000 common shares issued in March of 1996. The
Bank intends to make scheduled discretionary cash contributions to the
ESOP sufficient to service and repay the amounts borrowed over a
period of up to 14 years. In connection with the formation of the ESOP,
the Company adopted the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountants’ Staternent of Position 93-6, “Employers’ Accounting for
Employee Stock Ownership Plans.” As shares in the ESOP are earned and
committed to be released, compensation expense is recorded based on their
average fair value during each reporting period. The difference between the
average fair value of the shares commiitted to be released and the cost of
those shares to the ESOP is charged or credited to additional paid-in capital.
The balance of unearned shares held by the ESOP is shown as a reduction
of shareholders’ equity. Only those shares in the ESOP which have been
earned and are committed to be released are included in the computation of
earnings per share.

At December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, there were 456,918, 403,881,
and 334,030 of shares in the ESOP which were earned and committed to
be released. Shares released are based on the interest method.
Compensation expense related to the ESOP amounted to $791,000,
$856,000, and $709,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001,
and 2000, respectively. The average fair value of the stock was $18.92,
$15.34, and $12.52 for the years 2002, 2001, and 2000. Dividends
received on allocated ESOP shares in 2002, 2001, and 2000 amounted to
$212,000, $198,000, and $178,000, respectively, and were utilized to
reduce compensation expense. Dividends received on unallocated ESOP
shares in 2002, 2001, and 2000 amounted to $222,000, $272,000, and
$332,000, respectively, and were used to reduce current principal payments
on the ESOP loan. The fair value at December 31, 2002 and 2001 of the
unearned shares in the ESOP was $6.0 million and $5.2 million,
respectively, based on the market price of the company’s common stock
of approximately $23.70 and $16.75, respectively on those dates. The
principal amount due on the ESOP loan at December 31, 2002 and 2001
was $3.0 million and $3.5 million, respectively. The total unallocated
number of shares in the ESOP at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were
255,082 and 308,122, respectively.
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The Bank has purchased life insurance policies on the lives of certain
employees of the Bank. By way of separate split dollar agreements, the
policy interest is divided between the Bank and the employees. The Bank
owns the policy, cash surrender value, including accumulated policy
earnings, and the policy death benefit over and above the death benefit
endorsed to the employee/beneficiary. Income recognized in 2002, 2001,
and 2000, as a result of increased cash surrender value, was approximately
$576,000, $470,000, and $418,000, respectively.

NOTE 11. CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND REGULATORY
RESTRICTIONS

Capital Requirements

The Company is not required to maintain any minimum level of
capital; however, the Bank is subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”).
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory — and possibly additional discretionary — actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to, ensure capital adequacy,

require the Bank to maintain minimum ratios of Ger I core (leverage) capital

to adjusted total assets, tier I and total risk-based capital to risk-weighted
assets, and tangible capital. At December 31, 2002, the Bank met all capital
adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

The Bank has consistently maintained regulatory capital ratios at or above
the well capitalized standards. To be categorized as well-capitalized, the Bank
must maintain minimum der I core (leverage), tier I and total risk-based, and
tangible capital ratios as set forth in the table below.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Bank exceeded all capital
requirements and has not been notified by the OTS that it is in need of
more than normal supervision. The Bank is considered well-capitalized
under prompt corrective action provisions at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

OTS regulations impose limitations upon all capital distributions such
as cash dividends, payments to repurchase its shares, and payments to
shareholders of another institution in a cash-out merger. Under the
regulation, an application to and the approval of the OTS is required
prior to any capital distribution if the institution does not meet the
criteria for “expedited treatment” of applications under OTS regulations.
If an application is not required, the institution must still provide prior
notice to the OTS of the capital distribution if, like the Bank, it is a
subsidiary of a holding company. In the event the Bank’s capital fell
below its regulatory requirements or the OTS notified it that it was in
need of more than normal supervision, the Bank’s ability to make capital
distributions could be restricted. In addition, the OTS could prohibit a
proposed capital distribution by any institution, which would otherwise
be permitted by the regulation, if the OTS determines that such
distribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. The Bank
paid dividends of $10.3 million to the Company in 2002 and no
dividends in 2001.

The Bank’s capital amounts and ratios are as follows:

December 31 Actual Minimum Requirement Well-Capitalized Requirement
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
2002

Tier I core (leverage) ..., $ 78,532 9.44% $ 33,276 4.00% $ 41,595 5.00%
Tier I risk-based ........cccoovrviniiiiiirinniniencnens 78,532 17.23 18,234 4.00 27,351 6.00
Total risk-based......cccoovvivrecrnnicie e 83,505 18.32 38,468 8.00 45,585 10.00
Tangible ... 78,532 9.44 12,478 1.50 N/A N/A
2001

Tier I core (leverage) ....oovivvivcnimencnsininennn, $ 81,935 9.67% $ 33,899 4.00% $ 42,373 5.00%
Tier I risk-based 81,935 18.60 17,623 4.00 26,434 6.00
Total risk-based.....cccoivvinirinircccceens 86,191 19.56 35,246 8.00 44,057 10.00
Tangible ..o 81,935 9.67 12,712 1.50 N/A N/A
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Regulatory Restrictions

Pursuant to Regulation D of the Federal Reserve, the Bank is required
to maintain certain balances which include both cash on hand and
deposits with the Federal Reserve. The amount of these balances at
December 31, 2002 and 2001 approximated $2.8 million and $2.4
million, respectively.

NOTE 12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company is subject to a number of asserted and unasserted
potential claims encountered in the normal course of business. In the
opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, the
resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse effect on the

Company’s financial position, liquidity, or results of operations.

NOTE 13. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS/CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,”
requires the determination of fair value for certain of the Company's
assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet liabilities. The following methods
and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of

financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value.
Cash

The carrying amount of cash, which includes interest-bearing deposits,
approximates fair value.

Securities

The fair values of securities are based on quoted market prices. If a
quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted
market prices for securities with similar remaining maturities, comparable

credit risk, and coupon rates.
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Morigage-Bacled Securities and Collateralized Mortgage Obligations

The fair values are based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes.

Loans

Fair values are estimated for loan portfolios with similar financial
characteristics by discounting contractural cash flows with adjustments for
estimated prepayments. Assumptions regarding cash flows and discount
rates were judgmentally determined using available internal information
which management believes to be reasonable, taking into consideration
the credit rating of the counterparties, current interest rates, and

remaining maturities.
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The stock can be redeemed at its carrying amount, which
approximates fair value.
Noninteresi-Bearing Deposiis

The fair value on these deposits is the amount payable on demand on
the reporting date.
Interest-Bearing Deposits

The fair value of checking, money market deposit, and savings
accounts is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair
value of certificates of deposit is determined by discounting the deposits
using current rates of borrowings with comparable maturities as of the

reporting date.

Borrowed Funds

Fair value is determined by discounting the borrowed funds using
current rates of borrowings with comparable maturities as of the

reporting date.

Commiiments to Extend Credit

Fair value was estimated using the fees currently charged, if any, to
enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of

the agreements and the creditworthiness of the counterparties.
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The following table presents the estimates of fair value of financial instruments:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
' Estimated Carrying Estimaied Carrying
Fair Yalue Yalue Fair Value Value
Financial Assets:
Cash v $ 21,343 $ 24,343 $ 29,859 $ 29,859
Held for trading SECUTITIES .......oommecceeeccerccmnimninis i, 129 129 159 159
Available for sale SECUTIEIES .. ovviiiivrrirississecrereresesesrans 314,196 314,196 335,383 335,383
Held to maturity SECUTIEs.......co..veccrerreererimnecrsrrennens 3,157 2,951 3,138 2,914
LORIS ..ottt 502,706 480,172 464,322 453,798
FHLB SEOCK 1v.iivivinieieieiie et 12,018 12,019 12,429 12,429
Total financial ASSELS ........covvicrceriivresenrs e $853,550 $830,810 $845,290 $834,542
Financial Liabilities:
Noninterest-bearing deposits.......cooveewcnminncinnn, $ 30,701 $ 30,701 $ 31,671 $ 31,671
Interest—bearing deposits 504,387 493,366 502,767 498,020
Borrowed fUNdS....cccoviviieiiiiieiecececcccesi s 243,178 221,575 236,711 229,575
Total Anancial Habilies. ... ..eeeumereeeeeesnereeeeeeeeeeeeseennn $775,266 $745,862 $771,149 $750,266

1 Balance net of deferred fees and allowance for loan losses.

Commitments to extend credit are both fixed and variable rate
commitments. The estimated 'fair value of loan commitments at both
December 31,2002 and 2001 were equal to the carrying value of the
commitments on those dates.

The Company also has loan commitments which contain off-balance
sheet risk. These commitments are transacted in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These instruments
involve elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. The Company uses the same credit
policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does
for on-balance sheet instruments and the commitments generally expire.
The Conipany evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-
case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the
Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit
evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held includes residential real
estate and income-producing properties. Total commitments to extend
credit at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $98.3 million and $40.9
million, respectively and include both loan commitments and unused lines
of credit which bear market rates at the time the commitments are
exercised. Since many of the loan commitments may expire without being
drawn upon, the total commitment amount does not necessarily represent
future cash requirements.

The Company also issues standby letters of credit in the normal course of
business that are included in the total commitment amount at December
31, 2002. Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to

guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Standby letters of
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credit generally are contingent upon the failure of the customer to perform
according to the terms of the underlying contract with the third party. The
Company is required to perform under a standby letter of credit when
drawn upon by the guaranteed third party in the case of nonperformance by
the Company’s customer. The credit risk associated with standby letters of
credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers
and is subject to normal credit policies. Collateral may be obtained based on
management’s credit assessment of the customer. The maximum potential
amount of future payments the Company could be required to make under
these standby letters of credit at December 31, 2002 is $5.3 million.
Currently no liability has been recognized by the Company for these
obligations. There are no recourse provisions that would enable the
Company to recover any amounts from third parties.

The Company believes that reasonable comparability between financial
institutions may not be likely due to the wide range of permitted
valuation techniques and numerous estimates which must be made given
the absence of active secondary markets for many financial instruments.
This lack of a uniform valuation methodology also introduces a greater
degree of subjectivity to these estimated values.

The Company’s origination of loans is primarily concentrated in the
local southwestern Pennsylvania market. Purchased loans are concentrated
inside and outside its primary market area, including other regions of
Pennsylvania and other states not serviced by the Company. The
Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk with any

individual counterparty.
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NOTE 14. SAIF ASSESSMENT

Effective January 1, 1997, Savings Bank Insurance Fund (“SAIF”)
members have the same risk-based assessment schedule as Bank Insurance
Fund (“BIF”) members. The Bank, as a well capitalized bank, will pay no
assessment for deposit insurance coverage. However, all SAIF and BIF
institutions including the Bank will be responsible for sharing the cost of
interest payments on the Financing Corporation bonds. For the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, the cost to the Bank
approximated 1.7, 1.9, and 2.1 basis points, respectively, for SAIF deposits.
The annual cost to the Bank was $92,000, $98,000, and $101,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

NOTE 15. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid for the years ended December 31, for interest and income
taxes was approximately $28.8 million and $2.1 million, respectively, in

Year Ended December 31,

2002, $34.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively, in 2001 and $36.4
million and $2.9 million, respectively, in 2000. Noncash investing and
financing activity consisted of securities sold not settled which totaled
$992,000, $3.5 million, and $1.5 million at December 31, 2002, 2001, and
2000, respectively. The Company transferred $401,000, $409,000, and
$195,000 of loans to foreclosed assets during 2002, 2001, and 2000,
respectively.

NOTE 16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing income
available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potendal
dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common
stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the
issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the Company.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share follows:

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2002 ' 2001 2000
Basic Earnings Per Share:
INEt INCOME..iviviiririririereeenreeinns $ 6,744 $ 5,166 $ 6,652
Basic average shares outstanding 4,989,598 5,102,262 5,317,507
Basic €arnings Per share ..o e e e $ 1.35 $ 1.01 $ 1.25
Diluted Earnings Per Shate:
INEE ITICOIME ..ottt ettt ete ettt et e e be s se et sttt esssbe s eaesaensebesbesestarsensstesesresue $ §,744 $ 5,166 $ 6,652
Basic average shares outstanding..........ooviiiiiiiiic s 4,889,598 5,102,262 5,317,507
Effect of dilutive securities:
Shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options and stock awards........... 125,992 68,693 39,801
Diluted average shares outstanding 5,145,590 5,170,955 5,357,398
Diluted earnings per share ... $ 1.32 $ 1.00 $ 1.24
NOTE 17. GA FINANCIAL, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
Following are the parent company’s condensed financial statements:
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assets:
L1 U $ 40 $ 261
Investment 1n the BankK........ccoi oot st an 85,338 84,449
Investment in New Eagle Capital, INC. oo 44,667 32,504
Prepaid expenses and OthET ASSELS. . .o vorererrrmrnniiiveiconsiieseeesonrsreesssssessssssesessesesossisens 2,252 1,609
TOLAL ASSEIS 1ovvvriiriinseii bbb b st $129,297 $118,823
Liabilities And Shareholders’ Equity:
Borrowings due 0 subsidiaries.........ccoouiiiiicnmimni e $ 28,716 $ 21,729
Other HabIlHES ....ovvvirreicciss e e sbce st b 40 154
Shareholders’ EQUILY wvv.. vttt e sesseanssenesensesenee s 100,541 96,940
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .........cocccriiririiinniiireec e, $129,297 $118,823
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Year Ended December 31,
{Dollars in thousands)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Income:

32
Total INCOME....oviviviiiivioririseenies e csce et ceveneceseeras 347 431 579
Expense:

Borrowed funds ... 1,148 1,295 864
General and administrative ...........c.co.ooooeviiroviincsimninoninns 461 610 600
State fFanChise taX.....ooovvirriiiiiiniiine e rnees 60 62 24
Benefit for INCOME (XS ..o (443) (540) (277)

TOtal EXPENSE...vvvvereeivireieiisiarieiereeonariceninianceranceceseaens 1,226 1,427 1,211
Loss before equity in undistributed earnings of Bank

and New Eagle Capital, Inc. ...cccoooviviviciniiiniciniririnnnnn (879) (996) (632)
Equity in undistributed earnings of Bank €,712 4,734 5,667
Equity in undistributed earnings of

New Eagle Capital, INC. .....c..ccoovivivivirnininininninnnisinianns 911 1,428 1,617

INEt INCOME 1viviririinriaririi vt tsens $ 6,744 $ 5,166 $ 6,652

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating Activities:

INEL INCOMIE ...vviviiiriiiseiee ettt ebeavs $ 6,744 $ 5,166 $ 6,652
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of Bank ......cc.oooovvnineenne, (8,712) (4,734) (5,667)
Equity in undistributed earnings of

New Eagle Capital, Inc. .... (911) (1,428) (1,617)
Allocation of SCP Shares............ococvvvvivivrvvreeeecves e - 66 77
Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets .........c.cvvins (643) (679) (376)
Net (decrease) increase in other liabilities..........coocovccenes (114) 75 (548)

Net cash used in operating activities ...........covoerierriees (1,6386) (1,534) (1,479)

Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities................ — — 1,300
Increase in DOTTOWINGS ... ernernernenns 8,987 7,244 9,686
Dividend from Bank ... 10,300 — —
Investment in New Eagle Capital, Inc. ..o, (7,800) (1,100) (1,300)
Net cash provided by investing activities...........cccccccennrnn 3,487 6,144 9,686

Financing Activities:
Purchases of treasury StocK ... oeeeeererrercercinincnnnene e (5,391) (4,219) (7,865)
Cash dividends paid ... (3,589) (3,650) (3,886)
Other Stock tranSACHONS v.vvvucvvuceircerreeirrereseiressesarereeresarens 208 2,343 1,452
Net cash used in financing activities.........owerrrrerrreeenss (8,072) (5,526) (10,299)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ......c.cccoevvecsrernnnenns (221) (916) (2,092)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year........ccccecececen. 261 1,177 3,269
Cash and cash equivalents ar end of year ..., $ 40 $ 261 $ 1,177
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NOTE 18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (UNAUDITED)

On January 30, 2003, the Board of Directors declared a cash dividend
of $0.20 per share to shareholders of record on February 11, 2003, payable
on February 21, 2003.

NOTE 19. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLAN
On October 16, 1996 shareholders approved the “GA Financial, Inc.

1996 Stock Based Incentive Plan,” as amended (the “Plan”). This Plan has

two components which are described below.

Stock Awards

Under the Plan, 4% of the Company’s outstanding shares or 356,000

awards originally vested at the rate of 20% per year for five years and are
forfeited if an employee is dismissed for cause. Awards can now be
granted which vest over any period of time stipulated. Compensation
expense recorded in the consolidated financial statements under this plan
for 2002, 2001, and 2000 was $144,000, $§442,000, and $568,000,
respectively. The unearned compensation expense at December 31, 2002
and 2001 is $296,000 and $406,000, respectively.

Stock Options

Under the Plan, the Company was authorized to issue options of
up to 890,000 shares. The options originally vested at the rate of 20%
per year for five years and are exercisable over a period of ten years from
the date of the grant. The Company can now grant options that vest over
any period of time stipulated.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock-based compensation

shares could be awarded to directors, officers, or employees. The
Company originally awarded 308,650 shares in October, 1996. The

plan and changes during the year are presented below:

December 31, 2002
Weighted Average
Stock Stock Exercise Price

Awards Options of Options
Outstanding at beginning of year...........ccoccvciiiinc i, 31,960 443,500 $13.22
L =T OO 7,500 169,500 18.15
EXEICISEd oot bbb — (88,300) 12.57
Vested and forfeited .....o.oiiirivecieeee et se st emeveess e (15,560) (16,600) 14.43
Expired...cooocrcvninnn — (1,200) 11.68
Outstanding at end Of YEar oo, 23,900 506,900 $14.94
Exercisable at end of year........coiniiiccorinin e 347,968 $13.89
Weighted average fair value of awards/options

granted during the Year ... ccccnrnensensennns $16.87 $48.15
December 31, 2001
Weighted Average

Stock Stock Exercise Price

Awards Options of Options
Outstanding at beginning of Year.......cooooocinicconnisccvcnenens 64,375 512,750 $13.00
GEANTEA ot sttt r s 17,700 49,000 15.01
Exercised ..ooovviiiiiinnnn — (92,850) 12.68
Vested and forfeited ..... (50,115) (25,400} 14.27
Expired....coooviiiniiininn, — — —
Outstanding at end of year .... 31,960 443,500 $13.22
Exercisable at end of year.........cc..ccocnncnnnince e 359,499 $12.92
Weighted average fair value of awards/options

granted during the year.........cci s $15.23 $15.01
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NotEes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2000

Weighied Averapge
Stock Stock Exercise Price
Awards Options of Options

Outstanding at beginning of year 103,740 502,100 $13.26

Granted 23,800 84,500 11.68
Exercised — (2,000) 12.75
Vested and forfeited (63,165) (31,950) 13.88
Expired — (39,900) 12.75
Qutstanding at end of year 64,375 512,750 $13.00
Exercisable at end of year 352,583 $12.86
Weighted average fair value of awards/options
granted during the year . $11.68

Information about the stock-based incentive plan is described below:

Options Quistanding Opiions Exercisable
Weighted Average Remaining Weighied Average Weighted Average Mumber
Exercise Price Exercise Price Quisianding Contraciual Life Exercise Price Exercisable

December 31, 2002...... $12.75 $12.75 229,400 3.75 years $12.75 229,400
December 31, 2002...... 19.76 19.76 10,000 3.75 19.76 8,000
December 31, 2002...... 21.89 21.88 8,000 3.75 21.99 4,000
December 31, 2002...... 11.68 14.68 47,000 3.75 11.68 33,400
December 31, 2002...... 14.55 14.55 10,000 8.25 14.55 6,866
December 31, 2002...... 14.45 14.45 18,000 8.25 14,15 7,200
December 31, 2002...... 186.7¢ 18.70 15,000 8.50 16.70 §,000
December 31, 2002...... 16.38 18.38 12,000 9.25 16.38 2,400
December 31, 2002...... 17.51 17.51 60,000 2.25 47.514 20,000
December 31, 2002...... 47.40 17.10 12,000 9.75 17.10 2,400
December 31, 2002 ..... 19.00 19.00 85,500 9.75 19.00 28,500
December 31, 2001......... $12.75 $12.75 300,300 4.75 years $12.75 300,300
December 31, 2001......... 19.76 19.76 10,000 4,75 19.76 6,000
December 31, 2001......... 21.99 21.99 12,000 4.75 21.99 4,000
December 31, 2001......... 11.68 11.68 75,200 4,75 11.68 38,666
December 31, 2001......... 14.55 14.55 10,000 9.25 14.55 3,333
December 31, 2001......... 14.15 14.15 21,000 9.25 14.15 4,200
December 31,2001......... 16.70 16.70 15,000 9.50 16.70 3,000
December 31, 2000......... $12.75 $12.75 403,000 5.75 years $12.75 321,500
December 31, 2000......... 19.76 19.76 10,000 5.75 19.76 4,000
December 31, 2000......... 21.99 21.99 16,000 5,75 21.99 4,000
December 31, 2000......... 11.68 11.68 83,750 5.75 11.68 23,083
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QuarterLy FinanciaL Data (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents GA Financial, Incs quartetly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Three Months Ended

{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) Wiarch 31, June 30, Sepiember 30, December 31,
2002
Interest income $12,823 $12,829 $12,739 $12,489
Interest expense 7,456 7,254 6,965 8,569
INEL INEELESE INCOITIE tovevveiiiririsieesirert ettt s e seseeressssssabe e eb s reeee 5,367 5,575 5,774 5,900
Provision for loan losses 300 255 135 247
Net interest income after provision for loan 108ses........ccovrvrirecennnen, 5,067 5,320 5,639 5,853
INONINEELESE INCOMIE 1ivivivirieiiiiiriiist et rere s eeesesbers e rebs st s stent e enees 900 1,448 1,079 928
INONUNLETESE EXPENSE cv.v1cvvvieereereeissesecererieetsrsaerearsessssrsreesesseinserserssasoreasns 4,092 4,841 4,277 3,968
Income before provision for INCOME taXES..uvrererrviniriiriieniiierineenecns 1,875 1,927 3,444 2,643
Provision fOr iNCOME TAXES.......vivv.r.ereeereenrerererasresensisieseeresnserenemereesosonses 400 385 817 699
INEUIICOME ..ot bbb bbb bbb bbb s $ 1,475 $ 1,532 $ 1,824 $ 1,914
Basic earnings per share' $ 031 $ 037 $ 039
Diluted earnings per Share' ... e $ 0.29 $ 0.30 $ 036 $ 038
2001
INEEIESE INCOIMIE .c..vvivs ettt sesee et s st e st st essenebesesarsaess $14,846 $14,490 $14,067 $13,411
Interest expense .. . 9,017 8,579 8,363 7,923
INEt INLETESE INCOIMIE 1rtiiiireeriieierisrire et ete st e bt esctssbsseesressassasbesbesreas 5,829 5,911 5,704 5,488
Provision fOr 1020 10SSES ....vvrvieiiinirieerisiniereteice s vtces e rsestessessbe e s 90 330 315 340
Net interest income after provision for loan losses.... 5,739 5,681 5,389 5,148
INORINEELESE INCOIMIE 1vriuvrrueireeriririiissrere s ressereeate st resserssesssebsrere bt eerees 827 1,089 122 1,509
INODINEETESE EXPEIISE . cvrererverreivireresseerreceeerrsetirerecesesscereeesssesesonsceseesresses 4,613 4718 4,639 5,128
Income before provision for income taxes...........cooervmnsiiieciocesinn 1,953 1,952 872 1,529
Provision fOr iNCOME tAXES...........c..c..vveivsieeesronnrirsesisesisrseseseseneceenenssesionsones 450 445 — 245
INEL INCOIME vttt e bbb bbb en s b b baneans $ 1,503 $ 1,507 $ 872 $ 1,284
Basic earnings per share! ... $ 030 $ 0.30 $ 017 $ 025
Diluted earnings per share' ..., $ 029 $ 0.29 $ 017 $ 0.25

1 Quarterly earnings per share may vary from annual earnings per share due to rounding.

Common Stock Price Rance Anp Divipenps (UNAUDITED)

The following table illustrates GA Financial, Incs high and low closing stock price on the American Stock Exchange and the cash dividends paid per

share during 2002 and 2001:

Cash Dividends

Cash Dividends

2002 High Low Paid per Share 2001 High Low Paid per Share
First Quarter.......... $17.25 $16.15 $0.18 First Quarter ........ $15.10 $13.25 $0.18
Second Quarter ..... 19.75 17.10 0.18 Second Quarter.... 15.85 13.98 0.18
Third Quarter........ 19.50 17.00 0.18 Third Quarter ...... 17.00 14.95 0.18
Fourth Quarter...... 23.85 18.85 0.18 Fourth Quarter..... 17.10 15.25 0.18
Total $0.72 Total $0.72
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Corporate Information

CorPORATE HEADQUARTERS

GA Financial, Inc.
4750 Clairton Boulevard, Pittsburgh, PA 15236-2187
(412) 882-9946 = (412) 882-8580 FAX

Stock INFOrRMATION

GA Financial, Inc. is traded on the American Stock Exchange under the stock symbol
"GAF.” At February 11, 2003, GA Financial, Inc. had 5,150,167 shares of common
stock outstanding and approximately 1,600 shareholders of record.

INTERNET INFORMATION

GA Financial, Inc.’s financial reports and information about its products and services are
available at www.greatamericanfederal.com.

FinanciAL INFORMATION

A copy of GA Financial, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K without exhibits is available
without charge to shareholders upon written request. Requests should be sent to
Mr. James V. Dionise, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary.

INQUIRIES

Security analysts, retail brokers and shareholders requesting financial information or written
materials should contact Mr. James V. Dionise, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary.

Divinenp REINVESTMENT PLAN

GA Financial, Inc. maintains a Dividend Reinvestment/Cash Purchase Plan for registered
holders of its common stock. A brochure describing the Plan and an application to participate
may be obtained by contacting Mr. James V. Dionise, Chief Financial Officer

and Secretary.

AnNuaL MEgTING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, April 23,
2003, at The Bradley House, 5239 Brownsville Road, Pittsburgh, PA 15236.

SpeciaL LecaL CounseL
Muldoon Murphy & Faucette LLP, 5101 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20016.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
KPMG LLP, One Mellon Center, Pittsburgh, PA 15219.

REGISTRAR AND [ RANSFER AGENT

Questions regarding the transfer of stock, lost certificates, address changes, account
consolidation and cash dividends should be addressed to Registrar and Transfer Company,
10 Commerce Drive, Cranford, NJ 07016 ¢ (800) 368-5948.







